
9 December 2013 Agenda 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 
AGENDA 

Henderson City Council Regular Meeting 
Monday 9 December 2013, 6:00 p.m. 

R. G. (Chick) Young, Jr. Council Chambers, Municipal Building 
134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 
     

 
Mayor and City Council Members 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding 

 
Councilmember James C. Kearney, Jr.  
Councilmember Sara M. Coffey 
Councilmember Michael C. Inscoe 
Councilmember D. Michael Rainey 

 

 
Councilmember Brenda Peace-Jenkins  
Councilmember Garry D. Daeke 
Councilmember Vernon L. Brown 
Councilmember George M. Daye 
 

Councilmember-Elect Fearldine A. Simmons 
 
City Officials 
A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. OPENING REMARKS 
 

In order to provide for the highest standards of ethical behavior and Transparency in Governance 
as well as provide for good and open government, the City Council has approved Core Values 
regarding Ethical Behavior1 and Transparency in Governance2.  The Mayor now inquires as to 
whether any Council Member knows of any conflict of interest, or appearance of conflict, with 
respect to matters before the City Council.  If any Council Members knows of a conflict of 
interest, or appearance of conflict, please state so at this time. 
 

                                                 
1 Core Value 4:  Ethical Behavior:  We value the public trust and will perform our duties and 
responsibilities with the highest levels of integrity, honesty, trustworthiness and professionalism. 
 
2 Core Value 10:  Transparency in Governance:  We value transparency in the governance 
and operations of the City. 
 



9 December 2013 Agenda 
Page 2 of 4 

 

V.  ADJUSTMENTS TO AND/OR APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a) 25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting [See Notebook Tab 1] 
b) 25 November 2013 Work Session 

 
VII. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
 a) Recognition of Retiree Emma Granston 
 b) United Way Update – Donna Stearns 
 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT ON AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on Agenda items at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the 
meeting.  The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, 
come forward to the podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident, and 
identify the Agenda Item about which you wish to speak on the sign-up sheet.  Please 
review the Citizen Comment Guidelines that are provided on the last page of this 
Agenda.3 

 
IX. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 a) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-04, Authorizing a Bid Award for the 

High Service Pump Replacement in the Amount of $914,866 to Dellinger Inc. of 
Monroe, North Carolina for the Regional Water System; and 2) Ordinance 13-71, FY 14 
Budget Amendment #21, Amending the KLRWP High Speed Efficiency Pump Project 
Fund.  (CAF 13-06)  [See Notebook Tab 2] 

 
●  Resolution 13-04 
●  Ordinance 13-71 

 
 b) Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-72, Authorizing the Acceptance of the 

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan for the Elmwood Cemetery Sewer Main 
Replacement Project; and 2) Resolution 13-68, Authorizing the Execution of a Contract 
with McGill Associates, P.A. for the Completion of Engineering Design for the 
Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project; and 3) Ordinance 13-50, FY 14 Budget Amendment 
#14, Revising the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall CIP Project Budget to Encompass All 
Additional Costs Incurred for the Project.  (CAF 13-108)  [See Notebook Tab 3] 

 
  ●  Resolution 13-72 
  ●  Resolution 13-68 
  ●  Ordinance 13-50 
 
  



9 December 2013 Agenda 
Page 3 of 4 

 

 
X. CONSENT AGENDA  
 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-64, Relative to Handicap Parking and 

Loading/Unloading Zone on Chestnut Street.  (CAF 13-113)  [See Notebook Tab 4] 
 
  ●  Ordinance 13-64  
 

b) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-65, Dissolving the 2005 David Street 
Community Development Advisory Committee and Establishing a City Wide 
Community Development Advisory Committee; and 2) Resolution 13-78, 
Establishing a Flint Hill Neighborhood Advisory Committee Relative to the CDBG 
Talent Enhancement Grant.   (CAF 13-98)  [See Notebook Tab 5] 

 
 ● Resolution 13-65 
 ● Resolution 13-78 
 
 c) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-80, Developing a Demolition Contract 

for Partnerships with Non-Profit Organizations/Churches for the Demolition of 
Abandoned Structures and Abatement Projects. (CAF 13-122) See Notebook Tab 6] 

 
  ●  Resolution13-80 
 

 d) Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-81, Appointments to the Henderson-
Vance Human Relations Commission.  (CAF 13-123)  [See Notebook Tab 7] 

 
●  Resolution13-81 

 
It was the consensus of Council to bring all of the above items forward from the previous 
Work Session. 

 
XI. SEATING OF NEW COUNCIL 

 
a) Presentation to Outgoing Council Member Vernon L. Brown. 

  
b) Swearing in of Council Members: Sara M. Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, Garry D. 

Daeke and Fearldine A. Simmons.  
 

XII.  RECESS FOR NEW COUNCIL RECEPTION (30 minute recess) 
 

XIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 a) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tempore.  [No materials for this item] 

b)	 Appointment of City Manager A. Ray Griffin, City Attorney John H. Zollicoffer, Jr. 
and City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin. [No materials for this item] 

 
 c) Promissory Note for 2” Water Main Replacement. (CM 13-33)[See Notebook Tab 8] 
  



9 December 2013 Agenda 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 
XIV. WORK SESSION 
 
 a) Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-70, FY 14 Budget Amendment #20, 

Authorizing the Transfer of Contingency Funds to Engineering in the CIP Regional 
IBT Project. (CAF 13-126) [See Notebook Tab 9] 

 
 Ordinance 13-70 

  
 b) Off Premise Advertisement Sign Ordinance.  (CM 13-32) [See Notebook Tab 10] 

  
XV. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Citizens may only speak on non-Agenda items only at this time.  Citizens wishing to address the 
Council must sign-in on a form provided by the City Clerk prior to the beginning of the meeting.  
The sign-in form is located on the podium. When recognized by the Mayor, come forward to the 
podium, state your name, address and if you are a city resident.  Please review the Citizen 
Comment Guidelines that are provided below.3 

 
XVI. REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem 
b) City Manager   
c) City Attorney 
d) City Clerk 

i. Calendar Update [See Notebook Tab 11] 
ii. E-911 Report 

iii. Fire Department Monthly Report 
 
XVII. ADJOURNMENT 

                                                 
3 Citizen Comment Guidelines 
The Mayor and City Council welcome and encourage citizens to attend City Council meetings and to offer comments on matters 
of concern to them.  Citizens are requested to review the following public comment guidelines prior to addressing the City 
Council. 
1)  Citizens are requested to limit their comments to five minutes; however, the Mayor, at his discretion, may limit comments to 
three minutes should there appear to be a large number of people wishing to address the Council;  
2)  Comments should be presented in a civil manner and be non-personal in nature, fact-based and issue oriented.  Except for the 
public hearing comment period, citizens must speak for themselves during the public comment periods;  
3)  Citizens may not yield their time to another person;  
4) Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the appropriate city official, Council Committee or agency and may, 
if in order, be scheduled for a future meeting agenda;  
5)  Individual personnel issues are confidential by law and will not be discussed.  Complaints relative to specific individuals are 
to be directed to the City Manager;  
6)  Comments involving matters related to an on-going police investigative matter and/or the court system will not be permitted; 
and  
7)  Citizens should not expect specific Council action, deliberation and/or comment on subject matter brought up during the 
public comment section unless and until it has been scheduled as a business item on a future meeting agenda. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 1 of 10 

 City Council Minutes - DRAFT 
Short Regular Meeting 

25 November 2013 

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry D. Daeke, Vernon 
L. Brown, George M. Daye and Council Member-Elect Fearldine Simmons. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Attorney John Zollicoffer, City Clerk Esther J. McCrackin, 
Finance Director Kathy Brafford, Interim Police Chief Marcus Barrow, Fire Chief Danny 
Wilkerson, Planning & Community Development Director Erris Dunston, Main Street 
Coordinator Pam Hester, Human Resources Director Cathy Brown, Engineering Director Peter 
Sokalski, Kerr Lake Regional Water Director Christy Lipscomb and Code Compliance Director 
Corey Williams. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting of the Henderson City Council was called to 
order by Mayor James D. O’Geary at 6:01 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council 
Chambers, Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Council Member Brenda Peace-Jenkins led those in attendance in a prayer and the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
OPENING COMMENTS 
 
Mayor O’Geary said he was pleased to see everyone that came out for the meeting this evening. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 2 of 10 

 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  City Clerk McCrackin said 
with Council’s permission a Closed Session would be added for two matters:  a personnel matter 
pursuant to G.S. §143-318.11 (a)(6) and an attorney/client matter pursuant to G.S. §143-318-
11.(a)(3).  Council Member Inscoe requested a discussion on Economic Development.  With 
those changes, Council Member Coffey moved to accept the adjusted Agenda.  Motion seconded 
by Council Member Daye and unanimously approved. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked for any corrections to and/or approval of the minutes.  Council Member 
Peace-Jenkins moved the approval of the 28 October 2013 Short Regular Meeting and 28 
October 2013 Work Session minutes as presented.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Kearney and unanimously approved. 
 
PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked Interim Police Chief Barrow to make a special presentation to the 
Northern Vance Engineering and Architecture Students and their instructor.  Chief Barrow 
summarized this event beginning with the plans to purchase two new police vehicles in June with 
asset forfeiture funds.  Because of the new Dodge design, the current police car insignia needed 
to be changed.  Chief Barrow spoke to the Vance County Superintendent of Schools who put the 
Chief in touch with Mr. Jeff Arthurs, the Engineering and Architecture instructor.  Two special 
students put together an insignia which was unveiled during halftime at a Northern Vance High 
School Football.  Tonight Chief Barrow personally presented a plaque to Mr. Jonathan Byrom.  
Mr. Stanton Parham was unable to attend and will receive his plaque at a later date.  The Chief 
said the officers are excited about the new logo and added he has received many compliments 
from citizens and other enforcement agencies on the new look.  Recognition of the school’s 
design is on the bumper of each vehicle.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON AGENDA ITEMS 
 
The City Clerk advised the Mayor and Council Members that no citizen wished to speak to 
Council on agenda matters.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Authorizing the Application of a FEMA Grant by the Henderson Fire Department in the 
Amount of $690,000.  (Reference:  CAF 13-101;  Resolution 13-69) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked the Fire Chief, Danny Wilkerson, to present the details of this 
application.  Chief Wilkerson said if approved, this grant would allow for the purchase of 
twenty-eight (28) Self Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) that are outdated and a safety 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 3 of 10 

risk.  There would be a required match from the City of $9,499.  Chief Wilkerson said this grant 
will also provide funding for the purchase of a new pumper fire truck to replace a 23 year old 
truck.  The estimated cost of a new fire engine is $500,000 which would require a matching grant 
of approximately $25,000.  Chief Wilkerson said notice of approval is anticipated in early 2014. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked when the Fire Department last received a new vehicle.  Chief 
Wilkerson said a small truck was purchased in 2009 and added this grant cannot be used for 
small vehicles. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked if it is possible the City could be awarded a partial grant.  The 
Chief said yes.  Council Member Inscoe asked for the last time the department was successful in 
receiving a grant.  Chief Wilkerson said in 1990.  The Chief added he has never seen the fleet in 
such poor condition and is fearful about safety issues. 
 
Council Member Rainey asked if the 1990 truck was the oldest in the fleet.  Chief Wilkerson said 
yes and that the next oldest was purchased in 1994. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked is the Council can do anything to expedite the chances of 
receiving this grant.  Chief Wilkerson said letters of endorsement from 
Council/Senators/Congressmen would definitely add credibility to the request. 
 
Council Member Daeke asked if the grant is awarded what would happen to the old truck.  Chief 
Wilkerson said it could be sold and City Manager Griffin said any proceeds would go into the 
General Fund.   
 
There was no further discussion and Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Coffey to approve Resolution 13-69, Authorizing the 
Application of a FEMA Grant by the Henderson Fire Department in the Amount of $690,000.  
Motion seconded by Council Member Rainey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: 
Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye. NO: None. 
ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Resolution Book 3, p 239) 
 
Amending 2013 BJA Grant Budget.  (Reference:  CAF 13-119: Ordinance 13-66) 
 
City Manager Griffin said the next four items will be presented by Finance Director Kathy 
Brafford and asked her to step forward to explain this amendment. 
 
Ms. Brafford said due to a change in the price of two (2) In-Car Mobile Camera units, a 
difference of $22.00 occurred due to a price increase.  She said this amendment moves $22.00 
from the Asset Forfeiture funds to cover the increase.  
 
There was no discussion and Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 4 of 10 

Motion was made by Council Member Kearney to approve Ordinance 13-66, FY14 Budget 
Amendment #15, Amending the 2013 BJA Grant Budget.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Daeke and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Brown, Daye and Kearney. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See 
Ordinance Book 9, p 53) 
 
Amending General Fund Revenues and the Maintenance & Repair – Automotive Line Item 
Within the Fire Department’s Budget.  (Reference:  CAF 13-118: Ordinance 13-65) 
 
Ms. Brafford said reimbursement from the City’s insurance carrier was received on 25 October 
2013 in the amount of $5,495.34 for damage to Engine 3 (2003 Fire Truck).  This amendment 
places the proceeds in the proper line item. 
 
There was no discussion.  Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Rainey to approve Ordinance 13-65, FY14, Budget 
Amendment #16, Amending General Fund Revenues and the Maintenance & Repair – 
Automotive Line Item Within the Fire Department’s Budget. Motion seconded by Council 
Member Daye and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney and Coffey.  NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:  None.  
(See Ordinance Book 9, p 55) 
 
Amending the Water Fund to Use Contingency Funds to Appropriate Additional Legal 
Fees Within the Water Distribution Department.  (Reference:  CAF 13-120; Ordinance 13-
67) 
 
Ms. Brafford said this amendment is necessary to cover additional legal fees incurred to date 
resulting from the lawsuit involving the City of Oxford’s claim regarding the Granville County 
Water Sales Agreement.   
 
Council Member Kearney asked if there is an estimated ceiling on costs related to this suit.  City 
Attorney Zollicoffer said it is an open ended suit so there is no way to anticipate the total cost. 
 
Council Member Daeke and Council Member Coffey both asked about the hold harmless clause 
and Granville County absorbing the costs.  The City Attorney said he would be happy to sit 
down and discuss this issue with the Council. 
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked for Council’s pleasure. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Rainey to approve Ordinance 13-67 FY14, Budget 
Amendment #19, Amending the Water Fund to Use Contingency Funds to Appropriate 
Additional Legal Fees with the Water Distribution Department. Motion seconded by Council 
Member Inscoe and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Brown, Daye, Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:  None.  
(See Ordinance Book 9, p 55) 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 5 of 10 

 
Amending the General Fund to Budget the Reimbursement to the City by Vance County 
Tourism for Staff Overtime Expense While Working the Show, Shine, Shag & Dine Event.  
(Reference:  CAF 13-121: Ordinance 13-68) 
 
Ms. Brafford said reimbursement in the amount of $3,540 has been received from Vance County 
Tourism for overtime expenses incurred by the Police and Street departments during the annual 
Show, Shine, Shag & Dine car show on 19 October 2013.  This amendment will place the 
receipts in the proper line items with $3,180 going to the Police Department and $340 going to 
the Street Department.   
 
Council Member Daeke asked if reimbursement has occurred in past years.  City Manager 
Griffin said yes but for tracking purposes, bringing it before Council as an amendment is a clean, 
clear method of tracking. 
 
No other questions were raised so Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Peace-Jenkins to approve Ordinance 13-68, FY14 Budget 
Amendment #19, Tourism for Staff Overtime Expense While Working the Show, Shine, Shag & 
Dine Event.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following 
vote:  YES: Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe and Rainey. NO: 
None. ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Ordinance Book 9, p 57) 
 
Employee Appreciation One-Time Salary Supplement.  (Reference  CAF 13-124: Resolution 
13-82) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Human Resources Director Cathy Brown to summarize this item.  
On behalf of all the employees, Ms. Brown explained this is a request for what is commonly 
known as a holiday bonus of $200.00 for full time employees.  She added the bonus is prorated 
for those who have worked less than one year for the City.  Mr. Griffin added this supplement 
has been approved as part of the FY13-14 budget. 
 
There was no discussion so Mayor O’Geary asked for the pleasure of Council. 
 
Motion was made by Council Member Kearney to approve Ordinance 13-67, Amending the 
Water Fund to Use Contingency Funds to Appropriate Additional Legal Fees Within the Water 
Distribution Department.  Motion seconded by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the 
following vote:  YES: Daeke, Brown, Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey and Peace-Jenkins. 
NO: None. ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT:  None.  (See Ordinance Book 9, p 55) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Ms. Brown to update Council on the Wellness Program.  Ms. Brown 
said there has been a very positive response to the program with many employees sharing how 
excited they have been to learn even the basic principles of wellness.  There has been a 
competition between departments for obtaining individual gift certificates and overall, Ms. 
Brown felt it has been a very successful program.  Mr. Griffin added that the City’s health 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 6 of 10 

insurance broker is now working to further reduce the cost of health insurance to employees and 
specifically thanked Ms. Brown, her former assistant, Priscilla Adcock, and all the employees for 
their participation. 
 
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
After the City Clerk read the consent agenda items, Council Member Kearney asked if Assistant 
City Manager Frank Frazier was able to reduce the fees proposed regarding the Contract with 
McGill Associates, P.A. for the Completion of Engineering Design for the Elmwood Cemetery 
Outfall Project.   As Mr. Frazier was unable to attend this meeting and the City Engineer was 
unaware of the status of the fees, City Manager Griffin suggested this item be removed from the 
Consent Agenda and discussed separately. 
 
The remaining Consent Agenda items are summarized as follows: 
 
Donation to the Farmers’ Market and Allocate Funds for the Above Mentioned Donation 
(Budget Amendment #17.  (Reference:  CAF 13-110; Resolution 13-74)  Council discussed and 
approved the request from the leadership of the Farmers’ Market for $1,500 to assist with the 
purchase and installation of automatic doors for entry bays at its new facility.  (See Resolution 
Book 3, p 249) 
 
Authorizing the Acceptance of a Proposal with McGill Associates, P.A. to Perform an 
Update of the Water and Sewer Capital Improvement Plan and Financial Analysis Update. 
(Reference:  CAF 13-115; Resolution 13-77)  This resolution authorizes McGill Associates to 
update the CIP plan for Water and Sewer.  (See Book 3, p 255) 
 
Amending the FY13-14 Annual Schedule of Fees Relating to the Water Rate Structure.  
(Reference:  CAF 13-103-A, Ordinance 13-57) Staff proposed changes to the water rate structure 
in the Annual Schedule of Fees to insure compliance with Drought Bill Regulations.  The largest 
impact would be to customers with irrigation meters using over 4,000 cu/ft. (approximately 
29,920 gallons) per month.  (See Ordinance Book 9, p 35) 
 
Approving 2014 Council Meeting Schedule.  (Reference:  CAF 13-117;  Resolution 13-79)  
This action sets the Council’s meeting dates for 2014.  Additional meeting dates may be added 
throughout the year as necessary.  (See Resolution Book 3, p. 259) 
 
Tax Releases and Refunds from Vance County for the Month of October 2013.  (Reference:  
CAF 13-116)  This is a routine action required by Council. 

 



 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 7 of 10 

Oct 2013 Tax Releases & Refunds
Name Reason Tax Year Amount

Real & Personal Property
Releases
Cary, Tonie Antoniette Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2011 32.28                    
Rodriguez, Profino Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2011 34.78                    
Rodriguez, Profino Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2012 34.78                    
Salazar, Domingo Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2012 34.78                    
Baskerville, Nathan, PLLC Correct Value 2013 20.67                    
China King Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2013 53.06                    
Community Workforce Charitable Alloc 2013 28.21                    
Federal National Mortgage Correct Owner 2013 (1,129.36)             
Henderson Fields, LLC Vance Charter School 2013 9,381.66               
Road Runner Holdco LLC Correct Value 2013 1,292.87                

 
 

Tax Releases & Refunds October 2013- Continued 
Oct 2013 Tax Releases

Name Reason Tax Year Amount  
Robertson, Stanley D Correct Owner 2013 1,129.36               
Rodriguez, Jose Luis Reyes Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2013 24.42                    
Rodriguez, Profino Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2013 36.86                    
Rosemyr Correct Value 2013 7,018.03               
Salazar, Domingo Pers. Prop. Billed in Error 2013 36.86                    
Time Warner Cable Correct Value 2013 281.17                  
White, Melvin Correct Owner 2013 (107.35)                
Yellow Brick Road, Inv Correct Owner 2013 107.35                  

Total R&P Property Releases 18310.43

Real & Personal Property
Refunds None reported 0.00
Total R& P  Property Refunds 0.00
Total R&P Prop. Rel. & Ref. 18,310.43$           

Vechicle Releases
Woodard, Betty Tucker Correct Situs 2011 103.72                  
Carnalla, Severiano Pineda Pro-Rate 2012 17.57                    
Community Workforce Charitable Alloc 2012 18.49                    
Green, Jamesha Antonia Pro-Rate 2012 2.48                      
Hargrove, Antwan Oneal Pro-Rate 2012 4.87                      
Hawley, Cleveland Pro-Rate 2012 2.49                      
Marshall, Walter Louis Pro-Rate 2012 21.96                    
Meadows, Ada Lewis Correction (Deceased) 2012 (236.82)                
Terrell, Crystal Ann Pro-Rate 2012 5.87                      
Waters, Steven Paul Pro-Rate 2012 11.93                    
Au Hong Vinh Pro-Rate 2013 94.68                    
Ayscue, James Carl Pro-Rate 2013 40.18                    
Brame,James Arthur, Jr. Pro-Rate 2013 18.68                    
Eaves, Joseph Grey, Sr. Transfer Out 2013 236.38                  
Gooding, Woodrow, Jr. Pro-Rate 2013 3.04                      
Gospel Baptist Church Religious 2013 16.80                    
Hayes, Sheila Jones Pro-Rate 2013 23.06                     



 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 8 of 10 

 
Tax Releases & Refunds October 2013- Continued 
Oct 2013 Tax Releases

Name Reason Tax Year Amount  
Ho Falkner & Son Inc Correct Situs 2013 66.61                    
Lemmond, Frederick Marshall, Jr. Pro-Rate 2013 52.16                    
Mendoza, Gregoria Pro-Rate 2013 14.60                    
Nunnery, Edith Fisher Correct Situs 2013 122.96                  
Roberson, Michael Thomas Correct Situs 2013 768.63                  
Van Venrooy, John Robert Correct Situs 2013 81.67                    
Washington, Sheila Lorraine Pro-Rate 2013 10.39                    
Williams, Denise Pro-Rate 2013 4.46                      

Total Vehicle Releases 1,506.86               

Vehicle Refunds
Boyd, Russell Greenway Pro-Rate 2012 58.45                    
Henderson, Charline Shunta Pro-Rate 2012 5.16                      
Taylor, Lucy Hamilton Pro-Rate 2012 0.62                      
Tellez, Ana Lilia Santos Pro-Rate 2012 0.65                      
Tellez, Dania Gisela Santos Pro-Rate 2012 10.45                    
Collins, Earlie Glenn Pro-Rate 2013 2.53                      
Countryman, Rodney Lee Pro-Rate 2013 23.37                    
Kincaid, Cathy Maupin Pro-Rate 2013 2.58                      
Meza, Cruz Luis Alberto Pro-Rate 2013 12.80                    
Woodard, Sheila Tobias Pro-Rate 2013 11.51                    
Total Vehicle Refunds 128.12                  
Tot. Veh. Rel. & Ref. 1,634.98               

Total All Releases & Refunds 19,945.41              
 
There was no discussion regarding any of the remaining items on the Consent Agenda.  Mayor 
O’Geary asked for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 
Council Member Rainey moved the approval of the adjusted Consent Agenda.  Motion seconded 
by Council Member Coffey and APPROVED by the following vote:  YES: Brown, Daye, 
Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, and Daeke. NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  
ABSENT: None. 
 
Authorizing the Acceptance of the Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan for the 
Elmwood Cemetery Sewer Main Replacement Project; Authorizing the Execution of a 
Contract with McGill Associations, P.A. for the Completion of Engineering Design for the 
Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project; and Revising the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall CIP 
Project Budget to Encompass All Additional Costs Incurred for the Project. (Reference:  
CAF 13-108)   
 
City Manager Griffin suggested this item be deferred to the 9 December meeting to verify the 
fees associated with the Outfall Project.  The consensus of Council to defer consideration of this 
project was as follows:  YES: Daye, Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and 
Brown.   



 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 9 of 10 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
City Clerk McCrackin advised no citizens wished to address City Council.  
 
REPORTS 
 

a) Mayor/Mayor Pro-Tem – Mayor Pro-Tem Rainey urged Council to attend the United 
Way event at the Perry Memorial Library on December 10 at 3:30 p.m. where strategies 
will be discussed for 2014. 
 

b) City Manager  (No Report) 
 

c) City Attorney (No Report) 
 

d) City Clerk – Council was reminded of the Christmas Parade on Sunday and Senator 
Bryant’s Political Fund Raiser on December 17th.  Also, anyone interested in attending 
the Essentials of Government Class needs to contact the City Clerk to be registered.  

 
OTHER ISSUES 
 
Economic Development Commission (EDC) 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked for a discussion regarding economic development at a future work 
session.  He would like Council to consider some type of package that the EDC can offer to 
prospective businesses as part of an incentive to locate/re-locate to this area.  Mr. Inscoe would 
like Council to consider establishing criteria based on issues such as the number of jobs to be 
created, waiver of water/sewer taps.   
 
Council Member Daeke felt this was an important issue and asked if some legwork could be 
done prior to the next meeting to allow councilmembers to consider possibilities before meeting.  
Council Member Coffey expressed the need for some type of penalty/protection when businesses 
do not fulfill their obligation. 
 
Council Member Inscoe said he would be happy to meet with the City Manager to begin this 
process. 
 
With no further discussion, Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to go into Closed 
Session and stated there would be no report following the session. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
Council Member Daeke moved for Council to convene in closed session pursuant to G.S. §143-
318.11(a)(3) for an Attorney-Client Privilege Matters, and for a Personnel Matter, pursuant to   
G.S. §143-318.11(a)(6)  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye and unanimously approved.  



 

 
Minute Book 43 

25 November 2013 Short Regular Meeting Minutes  
Page 10 of 10 

 
Council Member Kearney moved for Council to convene in open session.  Motion seconded by 
Council Member Rainey and unanimously approved.   
 
Council Member Daeke asked if the Light The Night event will still take place if the weather is 
inclement.  The Mayor responded it will be inside the First United Methodist Church if it is 
raining.  
 
Council Member Daeke moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member Daye, 
and was unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned 7:17 p.m. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 
      ATTEST: 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Esther J. McCrackin 
      City Clerk 
 

 



 

Minute Book 43 
25 November 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 1 of 7 
 

 City Council Minutes--DRAFT 
Work Session 

25 November 2013  

 
 
PRESENT 
 
Mayor James D. O’Geary, Presiding; and Council Members James C. Kearney, Sr., Sara M. 
Coffey, Michael C. Inscoe, D. Michael Rainey, Brenda Peace-Jenkins, Garry Daeke, Vernon L. 
Brown and George M. Daye. 
 
ABSENT 
 
None. 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
 
City Manager Ray Griffin, City Clerk Esther McCrackin, Finance Director Kathy Brafford, 
Planning and Community Development Director Erris Dunston, Main Street Manager Pam 
Hester, Code Compliance Director Corey Williams, Interim Police Chief Marcus Barrow and 
Engineering Director Peter Sokalski. 
 
CALL TO ORDER    
   
The 25 November 2013 Work Session of the Henderson City Council was called to order by 
Mayor James D. O’Geary at 7:17 p.m. in the R. G. “Chick” Young, Jr. Council Chambers, 
Municipal Building, 134 Rose Avenue, Henderson, NC. 

            
ROLL CALL 
 
The City Clerk called the roll and advised Mayor O’Geary a quorum was present.   
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO/APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any adjustments to the Agenda.  City Manager Griffin asked 
that Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-60, Amending Zoning Ordinance Section 408 
Relative to Off Premises Advertising be discussed first as input may be necessary from the City 
Attorney who normally does not attend the Work Session.   City Clerk McCrackin said with 
Council’s Permission staff would like to present an update regarding the 2” Water Line.  With 
those changes, it was the consensus of Council to accept the adjusted agenda. 
 



 

Minute Book 43 
25 November 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 2 of 7 
 

WORK SESSION ITEMS 
 
Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-60, Amending Zoning Ordinance Section 408 
Relative to Off Premises Advertising.  (CAF 13-112-A;  Ordinance 13-60) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Planning and Development Director Erris Dunston to give Council 
an update on the Planning Board’s recommendation as requested from the last Council meeting.  
 
Ms. Dunston said the Planning Board met on 18 November.  The recommendation includes two 
options regarding off premise advertising signs.  All signs would need to meet Council’s 
approval.  The first option would allow a business to be a sponsor of a program with uniform 
signage for a set duration.  The second option would be permanent honoring someone or some 
event such as having a plaque placed at the bottom of a flag pole.    
 
As a reminder, Ms. Dunston said this came about with the desire to create partners for some of 
the projects that need to be upgraded and/or completed within the City and specifically 
mentioned the planters on Garnett Street.  The first option, mentioned above, would allow 
sponsorship for a year with uniform signs placed in the planter.  She added whatever the project, 
the signage would be size appropriate meaning what is the correct size for a planter would be not 
the correct size for a ball field. 
 
Council Member Rainey, a member of the Planning Board, added in layman’s terms, there are 
two styles under consideration.  One was permanent recognition.  The other is advertising.  
Council would determine which style is appropriate. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked who would determine the cost.  Ms. Dunston said it would be 
determined by the project. 
 
City Attorney Zollicoffer, Jr.  said an annual fee could be charged for signage in the planters 
which would cover the City’s costs for maintaining the sign.  Individuals would not maintain the 
signs.  The Attorney said the thought is for the general project to be approved by the Council and 
then administration would be completed by the City. 
 
Council Member Kearney said he thought this sounds like a good idea and asked if an ordinance 
could be created to provide that each program director would bring to Council a plan for review.  
He does not want to create something that is all inclusive which will limit possibilities. 
 
Council Member Daeke agreed with Mr. Kearney’s concept and added the City needs to deal 
with existing signs.  So he asked that whatever is decided is concise.  His main concern is size, 
materials, appropriateness to the area/locale and length of time. He also suggested that the Land 
Planning Committee might be the appropriate venue to review the project before coming to 
Council. 



 

Minute Book 43 
25 November 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 3 of 7 
 

Mayor O’Geary asked if there were any further questions.   
 
City Manager Griffin said with permission, this issue will be brought back to Council as a Work 
Session item in December. 
 
Handicap Parking and Loading/Unloading Zone on Chestnut Street.  (Reference:  CAF 13-
113; Ordinance 13-64) 
 
City Manager Griffin said this is just one of the routine requests that comes in from time to time.  
It is recommended that this be put on the next meeting for approval. 
 
Council Member Kearney pointed out there is a small cost involved.  Mr. Griffin said it is part of 
maintaining the signs. 
 
Mayor O’Geary called for the consensus of Council.  The consensus to bring this item forward to 
the next meeting was as follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Brown and Daye. 
 
High Service Pump Bid Award.  (CAF 13-06; Resolution 13-04) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Engineering Director Peter Sokalski to summarize this award.  Mr. 
Sokalski said bids were opened last Thursday; however, the review process will not be 
completed.  He said EE&T is currently verifying the bidder’s qualifications and will be presented 
at the next Council meeting.  Mr. Griffin asked Mr. Sokalski to prepare an interim memo to keep 
Council abreast of the process before the next meeting. 
 
Mayor O’Geary called for the consensus of Council.  The consensus to bring this item forward to 
the next meeting was as follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Brown and Daye. 
 
Appointments to the Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission.  (Reference:  CAF 
13-123;  Resolution 13-81) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Boards and Commissions Committee Chairperson Council Member 
Daeke to present this item.  Mr. Daeke said the Boards and Commissions Committee met on 21 
November and considered three (3) applications.  All three applicants are unanimously brought 
to Council for two year appointments to the Human Relations Commission for terms expiring 30 
June 2015.  The committee is working hard to involve more  of the younger population and Mr. 
Daeke encouraged Council Members to look within and outside their individual wards for 
possible candidates. 
 
Mayor O’Geary called for the consensus of Council.  The consensus to bring this item forward to 
the next meeting was as follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, 
Brown and Daye. 
 



 

Minute Book 43 
25 November 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 4 of 7 
 

Dissolving the 2005 David Street Community Development Advisory Committee and 
Establishing a City Wide Community Development Advisory Committee; and Establishing 
a Flint Hill Neighborhood Advisory Committee Relative to the CDBG Talen Enhancement 
Grant.(Reference:  CAF 13-98;  Resolution 13-65 and Resolution 13-78) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Planning and Community Development Director Erris Dunston to 
present this issue.  Ms. Dunston explained that one of the requirements of the Capacity Building 
Grant is for the City to have a Community Development Advisory Committee and also a 
Neighborhood Advisory Committee. 
 
Ms. Dunston said the 2005 David Street Community Development Advisory Committee has 
been inactive since 2009 when the project closed.  So, to prevent any confusion, it is 
recommended this committee by dissolved and a new city-wide Community Development 
Advisory Committee be established.   It is also recommended that at this time the Neighborhood 
Advisory Committee be specific to the Flint Hill community. 
 
Ms. Dunston added that the Boards and Commissions Committee met on 24 October to review 
and establish guidelines for both committees which will be recommending bodies to the Council 
regarding community development. 
 
Council Member Kearney asked if a Council Member could be added as an ad hoc member.  Mr. 
Griffin responded it would be at the discretion of Council as a whole. 
 
Council Member Coffey asked how soon before these committees would be established.  Ms. 
Dunston responded as soon as the committees are approved, applications will be considered. 
 
Council Member Inscoe said he did not want to be the bearer of bad news but shared the grant 
monies are minimal for this type of project and with the combining of the Rural Center with the 
Department of Commerce, things are not going smoothly.  Mr. Griffin said he felt it was 
important to establish these committees now so the City will be prepared for future possibilities. 
 
Council Member Kearney added the city has committed to the grant and that the scope will need 
to be refocused to make whatever improvements are possible. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins felt even if there are no dollars, the Flint Hill community will 
feel they are being reached out to and not being ignored. 
 
Mayor O’Geary then called for the consensus of Council.  The consensus to bring this item 
forward to the next meeting was as follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-
Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye. 



 

Minute Book 43 
25 November 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 5 of 7 
 

Developing a Demolition Contract for Partnerships with Non-Profit Organizations/ 
Churches for the Demolition of Abandoned Structures and Abatement Projects.  
(Reference:  CAF 13-122; Resolution 13-80) 
 
The City Manager asked Code Compliance Director Corey Williams to come forward to present 
this contract.  Mr. Williams said permission has been requested by non-profits to demolish 
abandoned structures within the Flint Hill community.  Given the lack of resources, Mr. 
Williams sees partnerships such as this an invaluable tool which will benefit both the City and 
community.  He added each time the city enters into an agreement, the contract will be reviewed 
by the City Attorney. 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins asked if the contract is set in stone or if it is flexible, according 
to circumstances.  Mr. Williams said each individual case would be considered by the City 
Attorney and City Manager and brought before Council. 
 
Council Members Rainey liked the concept and asked if the process of giving City owned 
property to developers to tear down structures for redevelopment is still being used.  Mr. 
Williams said not really and went on to say that this particular item comes more from a mission 
standpoint than wanting to develop the property. 
 
Council Member Inscoe and Kearney agreed that the City should not place the entire burden on 
the non-profit.  Mr. Kearney asked about the City’s liability.   
 
Council Member Daeke mentioned the possibility of the County reducing the land fill costs. 
 
Mayor O’Geary then called for the consensus of Council.  The consensus to bring this item 
forward to the next meeting was as follows:  YES:  Kearney, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-
Jenkins, Daeke, Brown and Daye. 
 
Main Street Program and H-VDDC Update.   (Reference:  CM 13-30) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Main Street Director Pam Hester to provide this update.  Ms. Hester 
gave a brief PowerPoint presentation which reviewed its four-point approach (organization, 
promotions, design and economic restructuring) and summarized a retreat that focused on the 
basics of being a successful Main Street and developing a management system.  Ms. HEster  
noted that Henderson needs a brand to build on; an updated vision and the H-VDDC needs to 
develop a mission statement.  She then reviewed events of the year such as Merchant Meet and 
Greets, free art lessons for seniors, sidewalk sales, Ducky Derby Merchant Coupons, Trick or 
Treat, and Damsels in Defense.  Ms. Hester shared 16 students from Eaton Johnson Ambassadors 
have volunteered 136 hours.  She said the Christmas parade has approximately 20 more entries 
than last year.  She also reviewed the economic structure of downtown Henderson and 
summarized by saying although the H-VDDC lost focus, it is now heading in the proper direction 
and is working hard to complete a strategic plan and to be back in proper compliance. 
 
Council Member Inscoe asked if loans were still available from the H-VDDC.  Ms. Hester 
responded yes.  He then asked if the County and the EDC could provide more exposure for 



 

Minute Book 43 
25 November 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 6 of 7 
 

properties that are for sale. Mr. Inscoe also asked about a Paint Main Street Program offered by 
Benjamin Moore Paints.  Ms. Hester said she looked into the program which is closed for this 
year but hopes to apply next year. 
 
Council Member Daeke appreciated the work of the H-VDDC and asked about the County’s 
involvement.  He suggested she share this presentation at a County Commissioner’s meeting. 
 
City Manager Griffin asked the Mayor if Council would like to recognize Mr. Phil Hart, 
Chairman of H-VDDC.  Mr. Hart came forward and said Mr. Terry Garrison, from the County is 
one of the H-VDDC members.   
 
Mayor O’Geary said he looks forward to Mr. Hart’s leadership. 
 
Minimum Housing and Enforcement (430 and 432 Chavasse Avenue).  (Reference:  CM 13-
31) 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Code Compliance Director Corey Williams to come forward.  Mr. 
Williams gave a brief PowerPoint  presentation to  paint a picture of the issues faced by the Code 
Compliance Department.  He began by referencing the structure at 430/432 Chavasse Avenue 
due to the recent publicity and said he had been thinking in general about this problem within the 
City.  It is Mr. Williams desire to focus Council on the blighted issues that exist and how to 
resolve these problems. He said the normal action has been aggressive code enforcement but 
feels more should be done with minimum housing to avoid structures getting to the point of 
needing demolition.  
 
City Manager Griffin asked Mr. Williams to explain the timeframe of enforcement on the 
Chavasse Avenue property.  Mr. Williams said the complaint and notice began the process in 
July. Then there was 45 days for issuing the findings and then a review was completed and the 
entire process was completed in October which is when the Charlotte News & Review publicized 
the problem.  
 
He said abandoned structures have been the focus for a long time and since 2004 approximately 
300 structures have been removed.  However, Mr. Williams feels the focus should now turn to 
minimum housing to avoid the need for demolition.   He showed a map of the City with 289 
active abandoned structures and also a map showing historical data regarding over 700 cases of 
minimum housing since 2007. 
 
Mr. Williams then showed a house that looks fine from the street but upon further inspection, 
had a leaking roof, exposed panel box inside, rotted boards, subfloor exposed and peeling paint --
- things that are not always visible from the street.   
 
There was a lengthy discussion regarding issues such as landlords, tenants that create problems 
for landlords, obligations of the City, the need to “put more teeth” into existing ordinances, a two 
person department and ultimately it was decided to bring this issue to the Strategic Planning 
Retreat for further consideration. 
 



 

Minute Book 43 
25 November 2013 Work Session Minutes  

Page 7 of 7 
 

2” Water Line Update 
 
City Manager Griffin asked Engineering Director Peter Sokalski to update this project.  Mr. 
Sokalski said the good news is that work should start in December for replacing 1,300 ft. of 
water line.  The work is being done by H. G. Reynolds, a local company and should be 
completed by mid-summer. 
 
With no further discussion Mayor O’Geary asked if Council was prepared to adjourn. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council Member Peace-Jenkins moved for adjournment.  Motion seconded by Council Member 
Daye and unanimously approved.  The meeting adjourned at 8:53 p.m. 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 26 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
3 December 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 13-06 

Consideration Approval of: 1) Resolution 13-04, Authorizing a Bid Award for the 
High Service Pump Replacement in the Amount of $914,866 to Dellinger Inc. of 
Monroe North Carolina for the Regional Water System; and 2) Ordinance 13-71, 
FY 14 Budget Amendment #21 Amending the KLRWP High Speed Efficiency Pump 
Project Fund. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO-5:Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure System 

 
 KSO-8: Provide Financial Resourcing:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal 

Operations and Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and 
Mandates of Regulatory Authorities.  

 
Recommendation: 
 
Approval of: 
 
 Resolution 13-04, Authorizing a Bid Award for the High Service Pump Replacement in the 

Amount of $914,866 to Dellinger Inc. of Monroe North Carolina for the Regional Water 
System. 
 

 Ordinance 13-71, FY14 Budget Amendment #21 Amending the KLRWP High Speed 
Efficiency Pump Project Fund. 

 
 
 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: ______________ 
 
Council Meeting:  9 Dec 13 Reg. Meeting 
          



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 26 

 

Executive Summary 
 
On 23 July 2012, the City Council approved, via Resolution 12-59, the acceptance of a 0% 
interest loan from the state to replace an existing 700Hp Finished water pump with a new 750Hp 
Finished variable frequency drive water pump in order to ensure redundancy, efficiency of 
pumping capacity and reliability. The plans and specifications had to be updated by EE&T as it 
was originally part of the 20 MGD project.  
 
Eight bids were received for the construction services to replace the High Service Pump in 
accordance with the plans.  EE&T, Inc. recommends the bid be awarded to Dellinger, Inc., 
subject to final approval by the state.  
 
 
Enclosures  
 

1. Resolution 13-04 
2. Ordinance 13-71  
3. EE & T Bid Award Recommendation 
4. Resolution 12-59 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 26 

 

R E S O L U T I O N  13-04 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AUTHORIZING BID AWARD FOR 
THE HIGH SERVICE PUMP REPLACEMENT TO DELLINGER INC. OF 
MONROE NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM 

HIGH SPEED PUMP REPLACEMENT 
 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 

(KSO) at its 2013 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS,  two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows:  

KSO 8: To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 
Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and KSO 5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant 
Infrastructure Systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has previously approved the acceptance of the loan for the High 

Service Pump Replacement via Resolution 12-59 on 23 July 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 and the NC Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
system improvements; and  

 
WHEREAS, bids have been solicited for the performance of this work in accordance with the 

North Carolina General Statues; and  
 
WHEREAS, the project was formally advertised and 8 bids were received for this project with 

the low bid being Dellinger Inc. of Monroe North Carolina; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Staff recommends a bid award to Dellinger Inc. subject to approval of the 

Division of Water Resources, Loans and Grants Section. 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY AUTHORIZE the bid award to Dellinger Inc., being more fully 
articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, for the High Service Pump Replacement 
project in the amount of $914,866. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is authorized to sign all agreements and 

documents necessary to effect said award. 
  
 
 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 26 

 

The foregoing Resolution 13-04, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote during a regularly scheduled and open 
meeting, received the following votes and was __________on this the ___th day of 
___________2013:  YES:.  NO:.  ABSTAIN:.  ABSENT:.   
 ___________________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 26 

 

 

Resolution 13-04 
Attachment A 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 26 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-71 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2013 -- 2014 BUDGET 
TO TRANSFER CONTINGENCY FUNDS TO CONSTRUCTION IN THE  

CIP REGIONAL – KLRWP HIGH SPEED EFFICIENCY PUMP PROJECT 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #21 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 27 June 2013, adopted its 

FY 13-14 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the regional water treatment system, said fund referred to as 46: CIP 
Regional Water Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time, said amendment 
incorporated in this Ordinance.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 

FUND:

PROJECT:

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 23-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

State Revolving Loan 46-939-458100 1,129,000$    1,129,000$     -$                1,129,000$                  
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           
-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 1,129,000$    1,129,000$     -$                1,129,000$                  
1,129,000$                  

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 23-Jul-12 Budget Amendment Revised

Legal/Admin 46-939-510200 9,000$          9,000$           -$                9,000$                        
Engineering Design 46-939-510301 67,000$        67,000$         -$                67,000$                      
Construction 46-939-510400 895,000$      895,000$        20,000$          915,000$                    
Construction/Admin 46-939-510800 46,000$        46,000$         -$                46,000$                      
SRF Admin/Closing Fee 46-939-504514 22,580$        22,580$         -$                22,580$                      
Contingency 46-939-509900 89,420$        89,420$         (20,000)$         69,420$                      

-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 1,129,000$    1,129,000$     -$                1,129,000$                  
1,129,000$                  

Variance -$               

City Council Mtg 12/09/2013; CAF: 13-06; Ord 13-71; BA #21 This amendment serves to transfer funds from the contingency line item in this project to the 
Construction line item as a result of the bid awarded to Dellinger, Inc. at the City Council 
meeting on 12/09/2013.

City Council Mtg 7/11/2012; CAF: 12-88; Ord 12-48; BA#2 On 26 September 2011, Council, via Resolution 11-88, approved the application for a 
loan/grant to the NCDENR for various projects with one being the replacement of a high 
speed service pump at the KLRWP.
On 11 July 2012, the City received notification that a DWSRF loan had been approved for the 
replacement of the high speed pump.
This amendment establishes the project budget.

EXPENDITURES

Reference: Notes:

Ordinance 13-71
46: CIP - Regional

939: Replacement of KLRWP High Speed 
Service Pump FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #21

Project Budget Created: 23 July 2012  
Amending Capital Project 46-939: Replacement of KLRWP High Speed Service 

Pump - Amendment #1 to this project

REVENUES

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 26 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-71, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 9 day of December 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  
**.             

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 13-06 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13—71 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 9 December 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of December 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 26 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 26 

 

RESOLUTION  12-59 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF A LOAN FROM THE NC DRINKING WATER STATE 
REVOLVING FUND FOR REPLACEMENT OF HIGH SPEED PUMP AT KERR LAKE 

REGIONAL WATER PLANT 

 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2012 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 

5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 and the NC Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
system improvements, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received an offer of acceptance of a loan for a water system project 

(project number WIF-1692); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City deems it in the best interest to complete this work in order to provide 

reliable, dependable and environmentally compliant infrastructure systems, and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of the loan is $1,129,000 for twenty years with a .00% interest rate; 

and; 
 

WHEREAS,  the finished water pump, controls, valves and piping for redundancy would be for 
funding at the Kerr Lake Regional Water Plant and consistent with future 
construction of the 20 MGD project. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL: 
 

1. That the City of Henderson (Applicant) will arrange financing for all remaining 
costs of the project. 
 

2. That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the 
project a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will 
provide adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of 
the system and the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

 
3. That the City Council (governing body) of the Applicant agrees to include in the 

loan agreement a provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the 
City of Henderson to make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the 
City of Henderson any State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local 
government unit in an amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to 
the State as a repayment of the loan. 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 16 of 26 

 

4. That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the 
project on completion of construction thereof. 

 
5. That  Mayor James D. O’Geary, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, 

is hereby authorized to execute the acceptance of the loan, being more fully 
articulated in Attachment A of this Resolution. 

 
6. That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request 
in connection with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as 
contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in 
connection with the application. 

 
7. That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all 

Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the 
project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-59 introduced by Council Member Kearney and seconded by 
Council Member Rainey on this the 23rd day of July 2012, and having been submitted to a roll 
call vote, was APPROVED by the following votes: YES: Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Brown, Daye and Kearney.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN:  None.   ABSENT:  None. 
 
 
      __________________________________  
      James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
(Reference: Minute Book 42, p. 532. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 17 of 26 

 

________________________   
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the foregoing is a true and exact copy of Resolution 12-59, adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 23 July 2012 (See Minute Book 42, p. 532.).  
This Resolution is recorded in Resolution  Book # 3, pp. 13. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this 24th day of  July 2012. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 18 of 26 

 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 19 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 20 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 21 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 22 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 23 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 24 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 25 of 26 

 

 



CAF 13-06: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 26 of 26 

 

 
 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 1 of 35 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

3 December 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF:  13-108 

Consideration of Approval of 1) Resolution 13-72 Authorizing the Acceptance of the 
Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan for the Elmwood Cemetery Sewer Main 
Replacement Project; and 2) Resolution 13-68, Authorizing the Execution of a 
Contract with McGill Associates, P.A. for the Completion of Engineering Design for 
the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project; and 3) Ordinance 13-50, FY14 Budget 
Amendment # 14, Revising the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall CIP Project Budget to 
Encompass All Additional Costs Incurred for the Project. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 

 KSO 5:  Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure 
 KSO 8:  Provide Financial Resourcing 
 
 

Recommendation: 
 
Approval of: 
 

1) Resolution 13-72 Authorizing the Acceptance of the Clean Water State Revolving 
Fund Loan for the Elmwood Cemetery Sewer Main Replacement Project. 
2) Resolution 13-68, Authorizing the Execution of a Contract with McGill Associates, 
P.A. for the Completion of Engineering Design for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall 
Project.  
3) Ordinance 13-50, FY14 Budget Amendment #14, Revising the Elmwood Cemetery 
Outfall CIP Project Budget to Encompass All Additional Costs Incurred for the Project. 

 
 
 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:    ______ 
 
Council Meeting:  9 Dec 13 Short Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 2 of 35 
 

 
Executive Summary 
 
On 25 February 2013 the City Council approved Resolution 13-23 authorizing the execution of 
an application for a State Revolving Fund Grant/Loan to provide funding for various 
downstream sewers that Sandy Creek Pump Station empties into.  On 1 April 2013 the City 
received notice from the Infrastructure Finance Section of their intent to fund this project.  This 
project will help mitigate the potential for sewer bypasses and overflows and will work in 
conjunction with flows from the Sandy Creek Pump Station. 
 
The $1,800,000 project was included in the FY 13-14 Budget and projected in the Rate 
Stabilization & Debt Service Plan.  Payments would not start until FY 16-17 with an estimated 
debt service of $115,465 annually for 20 years.  Based on current revenues and expenditures, it is 
anticipated there would not need to be a rate increase to pay for the debt service on this project.  
The loan offer is also being reviewed by the Local Government Commission and is subject to 
their approval. 
 
On 13 May 2013 City Council approved Resolution 13-35 authorizing the execution of the 
contract with McGill Associates to complete the Preliminary Engineering Report (PER), which 
has now been reviewed and approved by the State.  The next step is to approve the contract for 
the design, construction, inspection and administration of the project.  It is recommended that 
McGill Associates perform the design and other work in conjunction with this project.  We are 
currently in the process of negotiating the final fee for the design and other related services for 
this project with McGill.   After negotiation with McGill Associates, the final fee for the 
proposed contract is a reduction of $3,700 from $202,000 to $198,300. 
 
Required milestones are: 
 

 Engineering Report Submittal   - 1 July 2013 (Completed) 
 Engineering Report Approval   - 2 December 2013 

(Completed) 
 Plans & Specification Submittal  - 2 June 2014 
 Plans & Specs/Permit Approval  - 2 September 2014 
 Advertise Project, Receive Bids,  -  1 December 2014 

Submit Bid Information and 
Receive IFS’s Authority to Award    

 Execute Construction Contracts  - 2 January 2015 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 13-72 
2. Resolution 13-68 
3. Ordinance 13-50 
4. Resolution 13-23 
5. Resolution 13-35 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 3 of 35 
 

RESOLUTION   13-72 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL AUTHORIZING THE 
ACCEPTANCE OF A LOAN FROM THE CLEAN WATER  STATE REVOLVING 

FUND FOR THE ELMWOOD SANITARY SEWER MAIN REPLACEMENT PROJECT 
 
 

WHEREAS,   the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 
(KSO) at its 2013 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS,   two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows:  

KSO 8: To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital Outlay 
Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities;   and KSO 5:  To  Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental 
Compliant Infrastructure Systems; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction or replacement of 
wastewater collection systems;  and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson (City) has performed various analyses that identified and 

prioritized the need for the repair and replacement of various mains within the 
wastewater collection system and has formulated a project described as The Elmwood 
Sanitary Sewer Main Replacement Project, the Project, to assist the City in the control of 
infiltration and inflow and help mitigate the potential for sewer overflows; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council authorized City Administration to submit a loan application on 25 

February 2013 via Resolution 13-23; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City received notice on 1 April 2013 that the City’s proposed project was 

eligible for a loan in the  amount of $1,800,000  at 2.0% interest for 20 years. 
 
NOW  THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Henderson, North 

Carolina that it does hereby authorize the acceptance of the Clean Water State Revolving 
Fund Loan, and said loan award announcement being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A to this Resolution. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor is hereby authorized to sign the loan award and 

execute any future documents as necessary to this loan acceptance. 
 
 
 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 4 of 35 
 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-72, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member *** and having been submitted to a roll call vote, received the following votes and was 
______________ on this the ___ day of __________ 2013:  YES: NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  
ABSENT: None. 

______________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
_____________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 5 of 35 
 

Resolution 13-72 
Attachment A 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 6 of 35 
 

R E S O L U T I O N   13-68 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT WITH MCGILL 
ASSOCIATES, P.A. FOR THE COMPLETION OF ENGINEERING 

DESIGN FOR THE ELMWOOD CEMETERY OUTFALL PROJECT 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 2013 
Strategic Planning Retreat; and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 5:  

Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure.  To provide reliable, dependable and 
environmentally compliant infrastructure systems; and KSO 8: Provide Financial Resourcing:  To 
provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay necessary to meet the needs 
of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities; and 
 

WHEREAS, McGill Associates has been instrumental in assisting the City in applying for low interest 
loans and grants; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City received notice from the Infrastructure Finance Section that the project ranked high 
enough to receive a low interest CWSRF loan of 2% in the amount of $1,800,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the City to accept said loan offer; and 
 
WHEREAS, McGill Associates, P.A. performed the Preliminary Engineering Report for the City, and the 

Report was submitted and approved by the state; and 
 
WHEREAS, McGill Associates, P.A. is most familiar with the project; therefore it is believed McGill 

Associates, P.A. is best to perform this work and is exempt from the Mini Brooks Act relative to 
the procurement of these services. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON, that James D. O’Geary, Mayor, is authorized to enter into a contract with McGill 
Associates, P.A., being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, for the design, 
construction, inspection and administration of this project as required by the grant/loan 
applications for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall project in the amount of $198,300. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-68, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council Member 
*** and having been submitted to a roll call vote, received the following votes and was ______________ 
on this the ___ day of __________ 2013:  YES: NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: None. 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 7 of 35 
 

 

Resolution 13-68 
Attachment A



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 8 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 9 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 10 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 11 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 12 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 13 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 14 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 15 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 16 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 17 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 18 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 19 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 20 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 21 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 22 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 23 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 24 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 25 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 26 of 35 
 

O R D I N A N C E   13-50 
 

FY14 BUDGET AMENDMENT #14 REVISING THE ELMWOOD CEMETERY 
OUTFALL CIP PROJECT BUDGET TO ENCOMPASS ALL ADDITIONAL 

COSTS ANTICIPATED FOR THE PROJECT. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson on 27 June 2013 adopted the FY13-14 

Annual Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the Sewer Fund, said fund referred to as 44: CIP Sewer Fund; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Ordinance be approved, and said Ordinance shall be effective immediately 
upon approval of the City Council: 

 

FUNDS:
PROJECT:

Approved Current
13-May-13 Budget Amendment Revised

Transfer from Cap Reserve Utilities Fund 44-854-461070 19,300$             19,300$                36,000$                    55,300$                   

44-854-458221 -$                   -$                      1,800,000$               1,800,000$              

Total 19,300$             19,300$                1,836,000$               1,855,300$              
1,855,300$              

Approved Current
13-May-13 Budget Amendment Revised

44-854-510296 19,300$             19,300$                -$                         19,300$                   
44-854-510100 -$                   -$                      98,000$                    
44-854-510200 -$                   -$                      2,500$                      

Engineering 44-854-510301 -$                   -$                      8,300$                      
44-854-510400 -$                   -$                      1,439,950$               
44-854-510800 -$                   -$                      92,000$                    

SRF Closing Fee 44-854-567000 -$                   -$                      36,000$                    
44-854-999010 -$                   -$                      159,250$                  

  

Total 19,300$             19,300$                1,836,000$               19,300$                   
1,855,300$              

Variance -$                         

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

Fund Balance Appropriated 70-851-490090 39,955$             39,955$                36,000$                    75,955$                   
  -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

Total 39,955$             39,955$                36,000$                    75,955$                   
75,955$                   

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 1-Jul-13 Budget Amendment Revised

Trans to: 44 CIP Sew er 70-851-561044 -$                   -$                      36,000$                    36,000$                   
  -$                   -$                      -$                         -$                        

Total -$                   -$                      36,000$                    36,000$                   
36,000$                   

Variance -$                         

28 Oct 13: CAF 13-108; Res 13-68; Ord 13-50; FY 14 BA#14 This ordinance and budget amendment serves to amend the initial project budget for this project, which 
consisted solely of the preliminary engineering report, and to budget the State Revolving Loan funds from 
NCDENR and the corresponding project costs anticipated for this project.  There is a 2% closing fee 
which is being budgeted as a transfer from the Capital Reserve Utilities Fund (Sewer portion).

Planning & Design
Legal/Admin

Construction
Construction/admin

Contingency
 

Resolution 13-35 authorizing execution of contract with McGill Associates for the completion of a 
preliminary engineering report for the Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project.  Ordinance 13-23 and BA #35 
establishing a CIP project budget.

13 May 13: CAF 13-49; Res 13-35; Ord 13-23; FY 13 BA#35

 

Notes:Reference:

70: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES FUND REVENUES

70: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES FUND EXPENDITURES

  

Ordinance 13-50

State Revolving Loan (NCDENR)

44: CIP SEWER REVENUES

Elmwood Cemetery Outfall Project
44: CIP SEWER and 70: CAPITAL RESERVE UTILITIES

FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #14

Amendment #1 to this Project Budget

Project Budget Created on 13 M ay 13

Preliminary Engineering Report

44: CIP SEWER EXPENDITURES

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 27 of 35 
 

 
The foregoing Ordinance 13-50, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was **** on this the ------ day of ----- 2013:  YES:  . NO:  .   ABSTAIN:  .   ABSENT:   .             

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p.**; CAF 13-108 
  
 
__________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA - CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-50  adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on ________________ 2013. This Ordinance is 
recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p.***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ****. 
_________________________ 
Esther McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 

 
 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager  
 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 28 of 35 
 

RESOLUTION   13-23 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL APPROVING THE 
SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR  

 STATE REVOLVING FUND (SRF) GRANT/LOAN FUNDING 
 

WHEREAS,   the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 
2012 Strategic Planning Retreat, and 

 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this Resolution as follows:  

KSO 5:  To  Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmental Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems and  KSO 8: To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction or replacement of 
wastewater collection systems, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson performed an analysis of the sewers downstream of the 

Sandy Creek Pump Station that identified the need for the repair and replacement of 
various sections of force main and gravity sewer, which would help to mitigate the 
potential for sewer bypasses and overflows in the downstream Nutbush Creek Basin, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson intends to request state loan and/or grant assistance for the 

project, and 
 
WHEREAS, funding that is available is at a favorable rate of 0% interest and the City may 

qualify for up to 50% principle forgiveness, and 
 
WHEREAS, the estimated project cost is approximately $1.8 million with the final cost estimate 

to be determined upon completion of a preliminary engineering report. 
 
NOW  THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Henderson, 

North Carolina That: 
 

1) The City of Henderson, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining costs 
of the project, if approved for a State loan and/or grant award. 

2) The Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the 
project a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide 
adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 29 of 35 
 

and the repayment of all principal and interest and any debt service associated with 
the Project. 

3) The governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a 
provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the City of Henderson to 
make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the City of Henderson any 
State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an 
amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of 
the loan portion of the project financing. 

4) The Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on 
completion of construction thereof. 

 
5) James D. O’Geary, Mayor, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is 

hereby authorized to execute and file an application, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A, on behalf of the Applicant with the State of North Carolina for a 
loan and/or grant to aid in the construction of the project described above. 

 
6) The Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed 

to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in 
connection with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as contained 
above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in connection with 
the application. 

 
7) The Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all 

Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the 
project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-23, upon motion of Council Member Rainey and seconded by 
Council Member Kearney and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following 
votes and was APPROVED on this the 25th day of February 2013:  YES: Kearney, Coffey, 
Inscoe, Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke and Daye. NO: None. ABSTAIN: None. ABSENT:  
Brown.       _____________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 30 of 35 
 

 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 31 of 35 
 

R E S O L U T I O N   13-35 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT 
WITH MCGILL ASSOCIATES, P.A. FOR COMPLETION OF AN 

ENGINEERING REPORT FOR THE ELMWOOD CEMETERY OUTFALL 
PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) at its 2013 

Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS, two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows:  KSO 5:  

Provide Reliable, Dependable Infrastructure.  To provide reliable, dependable and 
environmentally compliant infrastructure systems; and KSO 8: Provide Financial Resourcing:  To 
provide sufficient funds for municipal operations and capital outlay necessary to meet the needs 
of citizens, customers and mandates of regulatory authorities; and 
 

WHEREAS, McGill Associates has been instrumental in assisting the City in applying for low interest 
loans and grants; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City received notice from the Infrastructure Finance Section that the project ranked high 
enough to receive a low interest CWSRF loan of 2% in the amount of $1,800,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, an Engineering Report is required to be submitted by 2 July 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, McGill Associates, P.A. has submitted a proposed contract in the amount of $19,300 to 

perform this work; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HENDERSON, that James D. O’Geary, Mayor, is authorized to enter into a contract with McGill 
Associates, P.A., being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, for the 
purposes of preparing the Engineering Reports as required by the grant/loan applications. 

 
 
The foregoing Resolution 13-35, upon motion of Council Member Kearney and second by Council 
Member Daeke and having been submitted to a roll call vote, received the following votes and was 
APPROVED on this the 13th day of May 2013:  YES: Rainey, Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, Daye, 
Kearney, Coffey and Inscoe. NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: None. 

_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p.816; CAF 13-49  



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 32 of 35 
 

 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 33 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 34 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-108: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Council Meeting:  
28 Oct 2013 Work Session 

Page 35 of 35 
 

 



CAF 13-113: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 1 of 4 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

3 December 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 13-113, Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-64, Relative to Handicap 

Parking and Loading/Unloading Zone on Chestnut Street  
 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
  CV 2:  Citizen/Customer Friendly – We value our citizens and customers and will work with 

them in a courteous professional manner.  We value their participation and input and owe 
them an answer to their questions in a timely manner. 
 
 

Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-64, Relative to Handicap Parking and Loading/Unloading Zone on 

Chestnut Street 
 
 
Executive Summary 

 
The City of Henderson received a request from the Parham Limited Partnership for a handicap 
parking space as well as a loading/unloading zone on Chestnut Street as shown on the attached 
map.  
 
The cost incurred by the City to enact this Ordinance is approximately $55 for the sign and pole. 
The handicap ramp to be installed in conjunction with the loading/unloading zone would cost 
approximately $100 in materials, with City forces performing the work. 
 
Enclosures: 
 
 1. Ordinance 13-64 
 2. Request 

3. Map  

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 Dec 13 Regular Meeting  



CAF 13-113: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 2 of 4 

 

ORDINANCE  13-64 
 
AN ORDINANCE CREATING A LOADING ZONE AND A HANDICAPPED PARKING SPACE 

IN FRONT OF THE MARIA PARHAM APARTMENTS ON CHESTNUT STREET 
 

The City Council of the City of Henderson, North Carolina doth ordain: 
 
Section 1.  That Section 7-86 be amended by adding the following to the Schedule of Streets set forth 
therein:   
 

“Chestnut Street, on the north side, beginning at a point 45 feet from the western curb line of 
Orange Street and running thence in a westerly direction for a distance of 22 feet (for one parking 
space for handicapped only). 

 
Section 2.  The foregoing Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its passage. 

 
The foregoing Ordinance 13-64, upon motion of Council Member ____________ and seconded 

by Council Member __________________, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the 
following votes and was APPROVED/DISAPPROVED on this the ____ day of _______________, 
2013:     YES:        . NO:      .  ABSTAIN:     .   ABSENT:      . 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. **. 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do hereby 
certify the foregoing Ordinance is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13-64, An Ordinance Creating A 
Loading Zone And Handicapped Parking Space In Front Of The Maria Parham Apartments on Chestnut 
Street, adopted by the Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on **  ** 2012 (See Minute Book 4*, 
p. **.).  This Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book # 9, pp. **. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this ** day of  *** 2013. 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 



CAF 13-113: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 3 of 4 

 

CAF 13-113 
Attachment #2 



CAF 13-113: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 4 of 4 

 

 

CAF 13-113 
Attachment #3 



CAF 13-98: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting:  25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 1 of 9 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

3 December 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CAF: 13-98 

Consideration of Approval of: 1) Resolution 13-65, Dissolving the 2005 David Street 
Community Development Advisory Committee and Establishing a City Wide 
Community Development Advisory Committee; and: 2) Resolution 13-78, 
Establishing a Flint Hill Neighborhood Advisory Committee Relative to the CDBG 
Talent Enhancement Grant.  
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item:   
 
CV 3: Fairness - We value our citizens and customers and will work with them in a courteous, 
professional manner. 
 
Recommendation:   
 
 Approval of: 

1)  Resolution 13-65, Dissolving the 2005 David Street Community Development Advisory 
Committee and Establishing a City Wide Community Development Advisory Committee 

2)  Resolution 13-78, Establishing a Flint Hill Neighborhood Advisory Committee Relative 
to the CDBG Talent Enhancement Grant.  
 

Executive Summary: 
 
The North Carolina Department of Commerce Division of Community Investments awarded a 
Capacity Building Grant to the City of Henderson on 11 April 2013. One of the requirements of 
this grant is that the City of Henderson has a Community Development Advisory Committee and 
a Neighborhood Advisory Committee.  
 
In 2005 the David Street Community Development Advisory Committee was established but has 
been inactive since 2009, as the project was closed. In order to prevent any confusion in the 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

    
 
 
 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 Dec. 13 Reg. Meeting 



CAF 13-98: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting:  25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 2 of 9 

 

future, it is recommended that this committee be dissolved and a city wide Community 
Development Advisory Committee be established. 
 
It is also recommended that the Flint Hill community be designated for the Neighborhood 
Advisory Committee. 
 
Both committees will serve as recommending bodies to the Henderson City Council regarding 
community development activities.   
 
The Boards and Commissions Committee met on 24 October to review and establish guidelines 
for both committees and its recommendation for both committees serve as attachments to the 
Resolutions.   
    
 
Enclosure: 
 
1. Resolution 13-65  
2. Resolution 13-78 



CAF 13-98: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting:  25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 3 of 9 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   13-65 
 

DISSOLVING 2005 DAVID STREET COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE AND ESTABLISHING A NEW 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE  
 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 
January 2013 and during said Retreat identified twelve Core Values and Principles and 
eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses two CV 3: Fairness: We value our citizens and 

customers and will work with them in a courteous, professional manner; and CV 11: 
Performance Excellence: We value excellence in how we govern and deliver services 
and believe that we should always strive for continuous improvement in our work and 
service delivery processes; and   

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson was awarded a Talent Enhancement Capacity Building 

Community Development Block Grant April 11, 2013 by the North Carolina Department of 
Commerce; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is a requirement of the Grant for the City to establish a Community Development 

Advisory Committee; and  
 
WHEREAS, there previously was a Community Development Advisory Committee established 

to work on the 2005 David Street Community Revitalization Grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2005 David Street Community Development Advisory Committee has not been 

active since 2009; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to establish a new Community Development Advisory 

committee to work with citywide representation appointed; and 
 
WHEREAS, this committee will serve as a recommending body to the City Council on 

Community Development related issues and will consist of seven appointed members to 
serve three year staggered terms. 

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY dissolve the previously appointed 2005 David Street Community 
Development Advisory committee; and 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY establish a new Community Development Advisory Committee according to 
the guidelines being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution.  

 



CAF 13-98: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting:  25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 4 of 9 

 

The foregoing Resolution 13-65 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the 25th day of November 2013:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          
ABSENT:   . 

 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 

 

 



CAF 13-98: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting:  25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 5 of 9 

 

Community Development Advisory Committee: 
 
Purpose 

The committee serves as a primary group for facilitating citizen participation throughout all stages of the 
federal, state and local government planning, implementation and evaluation processes regarding Community 
Development Block Grants. In addition it fosters ideas and plans for Citywide Community Development 
needs. The committee makes recommendations to the City Council regarding plans and projects relative to 
Community Development.  

Attendance 

The member attendance should be in accordance with the Attendance Policy in the Henderson City Code.  

Appointment 

This is a seven-member committee consisting of a member from each City Council ward and three at-large 
members.  All members must be residents of the City. The Henderson City Council appoints all members to 
serve three year staggered terms.  

Knowledge and Skills 

The members should be knowledgeable of community housing needs in their areas of representation.  They 
should have an understanding of the components of a healthy community. They should have experience in 
appropriate discussions in public meetings, orders of public meetings and parliamentary procedures.  The 
knowledge of community should be from a residential perspective. The members are appointed by the City 
Council.  

Roles and Responsibilities 

Each committee member has full voting rights.  They are expected to participate in discussions, share ideas and 
concerns, as well as represent the citizen concerns of their prospective areas.  The committee will have a 
Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary who are elected by the sitting members at the first business 
meeting.  These positions should be re-elected annually at the meeting marking the anniversary date of the first 
business meeting.  A simple majority is required to elect a person for these positions.   

Chairperson 

The Chairperson is responsible for approving the agenda of the monthly meeting.  The Chairman runs the 
meeting using parliamentary procedures and maintains order in the meetings.   The Chairman is an active 
voting member of the committee.  

Vice Chairperson  

The Vice Chairperson acts as the Chairperson in his/her absence. 

 

 

Resolution 13-65 
Attachment A 



CAF 13-98: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting:  25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 6 of 9 

 

Secretary 

The Secretary serves at the Chairperson as in the absence of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairpersons. The 
Secretary reviews recorded minutes prior to the meetings for approval by the committee.   

Staff Person 

The staff person for this committee is the Community Development Manager. The manager will also serve as 
the Recording Secretary for the committee.  He/She will post all necessary meeting notices, prepare meeting 
agenda packages for the members prior to meetings and record the minutes of the meetings.   

Quorum 

A quorum should consist of four members being present. 

Voting 

All recommendations should be approved by a  simple majority vote of the members attending the meeting.   

Powers and duties 

The Community Development Advisory Committee is authorized by the City Council to be a recommending 
body for the purposes: 

A. To recommend community development programs and project. 

B. To assess community development and housing needs. 

C. To prioritize the assessed community development needs.  

D. To meet on a regular monthly basis to review any matters regarding community development in the City.  

E. To review reports generated by the neighborhood advisory committees. 

F. To report and make recommendations regarding community development to City Council on a regular basis. 

Meetings 

The committee will meet monthly at a set time and location.  That time and location will be set by the 
committee at its first business meeting.  

Limitation of Powers 

This committee is limited to making recommendations only to the City Council.  All recommendations must 
have the final approval of the City Council.  This committee will not make any final decisions relative to grant 
programs, funding opportunities, and community development projects. The committee will not have any 
authority relative to the financial obligations of any grant or grant project.   



CAF 13-98: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting:  25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 7 of 9 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   13-78 
 

A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A FLINT HILL NEIGHBORHOOD  
ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

January 2013 and during said Retreat identified twelve Core Values and Principles and 
eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses two CV 3: Fairness: We value our citizens and 

customers and will work with them in a courteous, professional manner; and CV 11: 
Performance Excellence: We value excellence in how we govern and deliver services 
and believe that we should always strive for continuous improvement in our work and 
service delivery processes; and   

 
WHEREAS City of Henderson was awarded a Talent Enhancement Capacity Building Community 

Development Block Grant April 11, 2013 by the North Carolina Department of Commerce 
and 

 
WHEREAS, it is a requirement of the grant for the City to establish a Neighborhood Advisory 

Committee and 
 
WHEREAS, the City selected the Flint Hill Neighborhood as the area for the CDBG grant work 

to be done and 
 
WHEREAS, the Flint Hill Neighborhood Advisory Committee will be a five-member committee 

of residents from the project area appointed by the City Council to make 
recommendations relative to the project area to the Committee Development Advisory 
Committee.   

 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY establish a Flint Hill Neighborhood Advisory Committee according to 
the guidelines being more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution.    

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-78 upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member **, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following votes and was 
***** on this the 25th day of November 2013:  YES:   .  NO:   .       ABSTAIN:   .          
ABSENT:   .      _____________________________ 

James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 



CAF 13-98: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting:  25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 8 of 9 

 

Neighborhood Advisory Committee 

Purpose 

The Committee serves as a means of facilitating citizen participation within a neighborhood project area. 
It makes recommendations directly to the Community Development Advisory committee regarding plans 
and projects for the Community Development Block Grants as well as other community development 
initiatives.  

Attendance 

The member attendance should be in accordance with the Attendance Policy in the Henderson City Code  

Appointment 

The committee consists of a five-member board of residents from within the Flint Hill neighborhood 
project boundaries.  The Henderson City Council appoints them for three-year staggered terms.  

Knowledge and Skills 

The members should be knowledgeable of the neighborhood housing and community needs in the project 
area.  They should bring ideas relative to neighborhood improvement opportunities. They should be able 
to represent a sampling of the entire neighborhood population.  The members are appointed by the City 
Council to serve three-year terms.  

Roles and Responsibilities 

Each Member has full voting rights.  Each member is expected to participate in discussion, share 
concerns, and represent the entire neighborhood.  They will have discussion relative to the needs of the 
respective neighborhood.  The committee will have a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and Secretary who 
are elected by the sitting members at the first business meeting.  These positions should be re-elected 
annually at the meeting marking the anniversary date of the first business meeting.  A simple majority is 
required to elect a person for these positions.   

Chairperson 

The Chairperson is responsible for approving the agenda of the monthly meeting.  The Chairman runs the 
meeting using parliamentary procedures and maintains order in the meetings.   The Chairman is an active 
voting member of the committee. 

Vice Chairperson 

The Vice Chairperson acts as the Chairperson in his/her absence.   

Secretary 

The Secretary serves at the Chairperson as in the absence of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairpersons.  The 
Secretary reviews recorded minutes prior to the meetings for approval by the committee.   

Resolution 13-78 
Attachment A 



CAF 13-98: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting:  25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 9 of 9 

 

Powers and duties 

The Flint Hill Neighborhood Advisory Committee is authorized by the City Council to be a 
recommending body for the purpose of community development needs within the project area.  It 
addresses concerns directly related to the selected project area.  This committee serves as a representative 
sampling of the respective project area.   It recommends neighborhood based community development 
solutions to the Community Development Advisory Committee.    

Staff Person 

The staff person for this committee is the Community Development Manager.  The manager will also 
serve as the Recording Secretary for the committee.  She/he will post all necessary meeting notices, 
prepare meeting agenda packages for the members prior to meetings and record the minutes of the 
meetings.  She/he will facilitate the meetings engage the committee to provide feedback on issues and 
concerns.  The Staff Person will perform any necessary community surveys, facilitate community forums 
and neighborhood analysis as well as generate reports from the Flint Hill Neighborhood Advisory 
Committee to the Community Development Advisory Committee.   

Quorum 

A quorum should consist of three members being present 

Voting 

A simple majority vote is required to approve any reports and recommendations to the Community 
Development Advisory Committee.  

Meetings 

The committee will meet monthly at a set time and location.  That time and location will be set by the 
committee at its first business meeting.  

Limitation of Powers 

This committee is limited to making reports only to the Community Development Advisory Committee.  
These reports will be as a part of the Community Development Advisory Committee’s recommendations 
to the City Council.  The committee will not make any final decisions relative to grant programs, funding 
opportunities, and community development projects.   The committee will not have any authority relative 
to the financial obligations of any grant or grant project.   



CAF 13-122: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Work Session:  
Page 1 of 5 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
_______________________________________ 

 

3 December 2013 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  13-122 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-80, Developing a Demolition Contract for 
Partnerships with Non-Profit Organizations/Churches for the Demolition of Abandoned 
Structures and Abatement Projects 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Retreat Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO 4: Improve Condition of Housing Stock 
 CV 7:    Teamwork and Collaborative Efforts  

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 13-80, Developing a Demolition Contract for Partnerships with Non-Profit 

Organizations/Churches for the Demolition of Abandoned Structures and Abatement Projects 
 
Executive Summary: 

 
The City of Henderson has been approached by non-profit organizations/churches requesting permission 
to demolish abandoned structures within the Flint Hill Community. This is an opportunity to develop 
partnerships with non-profit organizations seeking to help improve communities to remove abandoned 
structures that blight neighborhoods.  
 
The opportunity to partner with a non-profit agency to remove blight enhances the City’s ability to 
remove blighted structures more quickly.  Given the lack of resources, those partnerships will be 
invaluable to both the benefitting neighborhood and the City. 
 
Attached is a draft contract prepared by the City Attorney that would be considered for non-profit 
organizations/churches. It provides guidelines regarding demolition and abatement process and 
requirements of each party. The draft contract has been reviewed by City Administration and City 
Attorney and shall be reviewed each time the city enters into an agreement as standard procedure.  
 
 
Enclosures: 

1. Resolution 13-80  

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 Dec 13 Regular Meeting 



CAF 13-122: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Work Session:  
Page 2 of 5 

 

RESOLUTION 13-80 
 

DEVELOPING A DEMOLITION CONTRACT FOR PARTNERSHIPS WITH 
 NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS/CHURCHES FOR THE DEMOLITION OF 

ABANDONED STRUCTURES AND ABATEMENT PROJECTS 
 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in 

January 2013 and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) 
and Goals; and 

  
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one of the Key Strategic Objectives and one Core Value 

as follows: KSO 4: Improve Condition of Housing Stock, and CV 7: Teamwork and 
Collaborative Efforts; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Henderson is participating in North Carolina 2012 Talent Enhancement 

Capacity Building Grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, one of the goals of building capacity within a community is to explore the 

availability of partnerships within the community and re-establish a healthy sustainable 
neighborhood; and 

 
WHEREAS, a Non-Profit Organization or church desires to enter into an agreement to demolish 

abandoned structures with the City; and  
 
WHEREAS, an agreement to demolish abandoned structures and remove blight within City, thus 

creating a partnership between the City and Non-Profit or church organization per terms 
of the agreement has been prepared.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL that it 

does hereby adopt a template for Non-profit Organizations/Churches Demolition 
Contract for abandoned structures to be used as a guide for demolition and abatement 
projects to sustain neighborhoods (see Attachment A to this Resolution). 

 
The foregoing Resolution 13-80, upon motion of Council Member ________and second by 
Council Member _______, and having been submitted to a roll call vote received the following 
votes ________________________was __________ on this __th day of ___________2013. 
        ________________________ 
        James D. O’Geary, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
_______________________________________ 
Esther McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Legal Form 
_______________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 



CAF 13-122: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Work Session:  
Page 3 of 5 

 

CITY OF HENDERSON 
CODE COMPLIANCE DEPARTMENT 
Post Office Box 1434 / 134 Rose Avenue 

Henderson, North Carolina 27536-1434 
Phone: (252) 430-5725   Fax: (252) 492-7935 

 
Demolition Contract for Abandoned Structures (Non-profits/Organizations/Churches) 

 
  
The undersigned non-profit/ organization/ church herein after refered to as the contractor   
     is acting as the contractor to perform abatement and or 
demolition in accordance to the specification listed below. The contractor, has inspected the properties 
listed below and understands the extent and character of the needed demolition and clearance of the 
property.  The contractor is to furnish the following: 
 
All labor and equipment necessary to accomplish the demolition, clearance, grading, and reseeding on 
properties described below to bring them into code compliance at no cost to the City of Henderson. 
Demolition includes hauling debris to approved waste facilities or landfill site. 
 
Contractor is responsible for maintaining liability insurance as approved by the City Attorney and submits 
a copy of certificate of Liability Insurance. The contractor’s insurance must have a minimum coverage of 
$100,000 for property damage and $1,000,000 for bodily injury and death. 
 
Demolition specification  
 

1. All debris, building materials, dilapidated structures (including accessory buildings), wells, 
privies, junk appliances, trash, tree limbs, concrete walks and/or pads shall be removed from the 
site, unless otherwise stipulated and disposed of by contractor, in accordance with State and Local 
Laws. Contractor must receive a demolition permit prior from the Vance County Planning & 
Community Development Office (Building Inspection Office) to beginning any demolition work. 

 
2. No structure shall be demolished without "Notice to Proceed" from the City and work must be 

started within seven (7) days after of notice of proceed signed and issued. 
 

3. Contractor shall take appropriate measures to secure and remove all utilities, (including electrical 
service, public gas service, telephone service, cable service and other applicable utilities). 

 
4. The water service is to be physically disconnected outside of the meter box. This can be 

accomplished by sawing or cutting the pipe in half. 
 
5. The contractor is required to locate the existing sanitary sewer service for the structure being 

demolished, and cap off the sewer line within five (5’) feet of the property line or right–of-way, 
using a rubber cap with a stainless steel band. Prior to covering up, the City shall be called to 
inspect the work. Upon covering up, the contractor shall install a metal indicator to designate the 
end and location of the sewer tap, and shall extend at least three (3’) feet above ground and be 
painted orange.   

 
6. Contractor shall take appropriate measures to ensure public safety and traffic circulation.  

 
7. The following activities must meet State guidelines:  

Resolution 13-80 
Attachment A 



CAF 13-122: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Work Session:  
Page 4 of 5 

 

a) Demolition of structures containing asbestos material must be in compliance with 
15NCAC0525. 

 
b) A rodent control plan shall be implemented prior to the removal or demolition of 

dilapidated structures in order to prevent migration of rodents to adjacent areas. 
 

8. No burning of any materials shall be allowed on site. 
 
9. No tree over six (6) inches in diameter nor any drip-line zone or protected area shall be destroyed. 

 
10. Site shall be raked clean with dozer blade or loader, or hand-raked and left smooth enough to 

prevent rain from pooling.  Site shall also be left in a manner that basic lawn maintenance will be 
able to be performed. 

 
11. Contractor is required to seed, mulch, and pack all areas disturbed as a result of the work done 

under this contract. 
 
12. The contractor is required to fill and pack all holes that are associated with privies and wells with 

dirt compacted. 
 
13. The contractor shall be responsible for any and all damages that may occur during the demolition 

process. 
 

14. The contractor is advised that demolition waste shall be disposed only at landfills approved by the 
County or Waste Industries. 

 
15. Prior to beginning any demolition work, the contractor shall notify the City within 24 hours in 

advance, obtain a Demolition Permit from the Vance County Planning & Community 
Development Office (Building Inspection Office) and sign the Notice to Proceed. 

 
16. When work is completed the contractor shall turn in all landfill tickets to the Code Compliance 

Department and call for an inspection of the site by the City and upon completion of the terms 
herein. 

 
17. The contractor shall keep on file with the City a Municipal Insurance Bond as previously 

mentioned. 
 

18. The City of Henderson will pay landfill fees directly to county landfill or Waste industry. 
 

19. Demolition shall be completed within 10 days from issuance of "Notice to Proceed".  
 

20. If contractor discovers any marketable personable property, fixtures, or appurtenances in or 
attached to the structures, it shall deliver the same to the city which shall sell the same and credit 
the net proceeds therefrom against the cost of removal or demolition. 
The City reserves the right to eliminate any of the following structures for demolition for  any 
reason.  

 
The non-profit/ organization/ church acting as the contractor are not employees of the City of Henderson. 
The non-profit/ organization/ church is serving as independent volunteers to assist the communities (Flint 
Hill Community) in the City of Henderson to improve the quality of life within the neighborhood and 



CAF 13-122: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting: 25 November 2013 Work Session:  
Page 5 of 5 

 

achieve the mission of the organization. As volunteers the non-profit/ organization/ church shall not be 
paid. 
 
Listed below are the structures ready for abatement, demolition, clearance, grading, reseeding and 
perform all specification mentioned. 
 

 ADDRESS PARCEL Contractor’s Cost 
1. 100 Test Street 0000 01000 $0 

 
I agree to complete all work in accordance to specification and cost mentioned. 
 
Organization            
(PRINT OR TYPE) 
 
Signature:            
(AUTHORZIED AGENT OR OFFICER) 
 
Address            
 
Phone #:            
 
The terms of demolition and abatement are accepted and a binding contract is hereby entered into 
between the City and the Contractor who is hereby authorized to proceed.  
 
This the   day of     ,2013    
 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
 
Approved as to Legal Form: 
 
_______________________________________  
City Attorney, John H. Zollicoffer, Jr.    
 

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATION 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 
    _______________________________ 
    Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
    City of Henderson 
 



CAF 13-123: 9 December 2013: 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 1 of 8 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 
3 December 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF:  13-123 

Consideration of Approval of Resolution 13-81, Appointments to the Henderson- 
Vance Human Relations Commission. 

 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 

 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Resolution 13-81, Appointments to the Henderson- Vance Human Relations 

Commission. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
The Boards and Commissions’ Committee (B&CC) met on 21 November 2013 to review the two 
applications for the Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission and recommends the 
following appointments: 
 
Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission 
 
Mr. Leonard Thomas Englehart III – Appoint to fill the unexpired term of Marguerite Anduze for 
a two-year term expiring 30 June 2015. 
 
Mr. David Lee Person – Appoint to fill the unexpired term of James Baines for a two-year term 
expiring 30 June 2015. 
 
Ms. Alberta O. Jeffers – Appointed to fill the unexpired term of Dorothy Henderson for a two-
year term expiring 30 June 2015. 
 
Enclosures: 
 1. Resolution 13-81 
 2. Applications   

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item:    ____________ 
 
Council Meeting:  9 Dec 13 Reg. Meeting 
 



CAF 13-123: 9 December 2013: 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 2 of 8 

 

RESOLUTION 13-81 
A RESOLUTION MAKING APPOINTMENTS TO  

THE HENDERSON-VANCE HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION 
 

WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) has created several boards and commissions 
as a means to include citizen input to and participation within the governance process; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Council periodically appoints individuals to serve on said boards and 
commissions; and 

WHEREAS, there are vacancies on the Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission; and 

WHEREAS, applications have been received and reviewed by the Council’s Boards and 
Commissions’ Committee for available positions. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 
DOES HEREBY appoint the following individuals: 

1. Mr. Leonard Thomas Englehart III, a city resident living at 225 White Oak Drive, to 
serve on the Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission as a full member with a 
term expiring on 30 June 2015; and 

2. Mr. David Lee Person, a city resident living at 159 South Bullock Street, to serve on the 
Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission as a full member with a term expiring 
on 30 June 2015; and 

3. Ms. Alberta O. Jeffers, a city resident living at 803 Eaton Street, to serve on the 
Henderson-Vance Human Relations Commission as a full member with a term expiring 
on 30 June 2015. 

The foregoing Resolution 13-81, upon motion of Council Member *** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote during a regularly scheduled and open 
meeting, received the following votes and was APPROVED on this the 25th day of November 
2013:  YES:.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.  ABSENT: None. 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
Approved to Legal Form: 
_______________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
Reference:  Minute Book 43, p. ***; CAF 13-123 



CAF 13-123: 9 December 2013: 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 3 of 8 

 

 

CAF 13-123 
Attachment #2 



CAF 13-123: 9 December 2013: 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 4 of 8 

 

 



CAF 13-123: 9 December 2013: 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 5 of 8 

 

 



CAF 13-123: 9 December 2013: 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 6 of 8 

 

 



CAF 13-123: 9 December 2013: 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 7 of 8 

 

 



CAF 13-123: 9 December 2013: 25 November 2013 Work Session 
Page 8 of 8 

 

 
  
 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 15 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________________________ 
 

5 December 2013 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D.O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CM:  13-33 

Re:  Promissory Note for 2” Water Main Replacement 
       State Project H-LRX-F-11-1694 
 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Attached is a copy of an executed Promissory Note for the funds related to the 2” Water Main 
Replacement Project that is currently under construction. The loan amount is $1,898,571 at 0% interest 
over 20 years.  
 
This loan was accepted by the Council via Resolution 12-62 on 13 August 2012 and serves as a matter of 
record and status of the project. 
 
Enclosures: 
 

1. Promissory Note 
2. NC Dept. of State Treasurer Letter & Payment Schedule 
3. Resolution 12-62 

 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _____________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 Dec. 13 Regular Meeting 
    



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 15 

 

CM 13-32 
Attachment #1 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 15 

 

 

CM 13-32 
Attachment #2 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 15 

 

 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 15 

 

RESOLUTION  12-62 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF A LOAN FROM THE NC DRINKING WATER STATE 
REVOLVING FUND FOR 2” WATER MAINS AND SERVICES REPLACEMENT 

PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Henderson City Council (Council) identified eight Key Strategic Objectives 

(KSO) at its 2012 Strategic Planning Retreat; and 
 
WHEREAS,   two of the Key Strategic Objectives are addressed by this request as follows: KSO 

5: To Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure 
Systems; and KSO 8:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and Capital 
Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act Amendments of 1996 and the NC Water 

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants 
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of drinking water 
system improvements, and 

 
WHEREAS, the City received an offer of acceptance of a loan for a water system project 

(project number WIF-1694); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City deems it in the best interest to complete this work in order to provide 

reliable, dependable and environmentally compliant infrastructure systems, and 
 
WHEREAS, the amount of the loan is $1,726,000 for twenty years with a 0.00% interest rate; 

and; 
 
WHEREAS, the new water mains will help with water pressure and water quality for the 

customers and with maintenance and repair reduction in various locations throughout 
the City. 

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL: 
 

1. That the City of Henderson (Applicant) will arrange financing for all remaining  
     costs of the project. 
 

2. That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the 
project a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide 
adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system 
and the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 

 
3. That the City Council (governing body) of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan 

agreement a provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the City of 
Henderson to make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the City of 
Henderson any State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government 
unit in an amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a 
repayment of the loan.  

 

CM 13-32 
Attachment #3 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 15 

 

4. That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project 
on completion of construction thereof. 

 
5. That  Mayor James D. O’Geary, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is 

hereby authorized to execute the acceptance of the loan, being more fully articulated in 
Attachment A of this Resolution. 

 
6. That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 

directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in 
connection with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as contained 
above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the 
application. 

 
7. That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all 

Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the 
project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 

 
The foregoing Resolution 12-62 introduced by Council Member Peace-Jenkins and seconded by 
Council Member Coffey on this the 13th day of  August 2012, and having been submitted to a 
roll call vote, was APPROVED by the following votes: YES: Peace-Jenkins, Daeke, Brown, 
Daye, Coffey and Inscoe.  NO: None.  ABSTAIN: None.   ABSENT: Kearney and Rainey. 
 
 
      __________________________________  
     James D. O’Geary, Mayor    
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
____________________________________   
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
(Reference:  Minute Book 42, p. 548) 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 15 

 

 
 

Resolution 12-62 
Attachment A 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 15 

 

 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 15 

 

 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 15 

 

 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 15 

 

 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 15 

 

 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 15 

 

 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 15 

 

 



CM 13-33: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 15 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 18 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
3 December 2013 

 
TO: The Honorable Mayor James D O’Geary and Members of City Council 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
RE: CAF: 13-126 

Consideration of Approval of Ordinance 13-70, FY 14 Budget Amendment #20, Authorizing 
the Transfer of Contingency Funds to Engineering in the CIP Regional IBT Project 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
Council Goals Addressed By This Item: 
 
 KSO-5:Provide Reliable, Dependable and Environmentally Compliant Infrastructure System 
 KSO-8: Provide Financial Resourcing:  To Provide Sufficient Funds for Municipal Operations and 

Capital Outlay Necessary to Meet the Needs of Citizens, Customers and Mandates of Regulatory 
Authorities.  

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
 Approval of Ordinance 13-70, FY 14 Budget Amendment #20, Authorizing the Transfer of 

Contingency Funds to Engineering in the CIP Regional IBT Project. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
On 27 September 2010 City Council approved the acceptance of a contract with CH2MHill for IBT 
services via Resolution 10-98. Throughout the Interbasin Transfer Project, funding for the engineering 
services has been allocated in the contingency line item and then moved to the appropriate line item as 
needed, contingent on City Council approval. There is ongoing work related to the modeling and 
projections update which will require continued funding of the project services with CH2MHill.  
 
The City and its KLRW partners, through its legislative representatives, are discussing proposed 
legislation which may help expedite the lengthy process.  
 
Enclosures:  
 

1. Ordinance 13-70 
2. Resolution 10-98 

City Council Action Form 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: ________________ 
 
Council Meeting:  9 Dec 2013 Reg. Meeting 
          



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 2 of 18 

 

O R D I N A N C E  13-70 
 

AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2013 - 2014 BUDGET 
TO TRANSFER CONTINGENCY FUNDS TO ENGINEERING IN THE  

CIP REGIONAL – IBT PROJECT 
BUDGET AMENDMENT #20 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Henderson (Council), on 27 June 2013, adopted its 

FY 13-14 Operating Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council has created and uses a Capital Improvements Fund for active capital 

projects related to the regional water treatment system, said fund referred to as 46: CIP 
Regional Water Fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the various revenue and expense accounts of the annual 

operating and capital improvements budgets from time-to-time, said amendment 
incorporated in this Ordinance.  

 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of The City of Henderson, that 

the following Budget Ordinance Amendment be approved and said Ordinance shall be 
effective immediately upon approval of the City Council: 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 3 of 18 

 

FUND:

PROJECT:

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 26-Jan-04 Budget Amendment Revised

Investment Income 46-939-458100 -$             12$                -$                12$                            
Trans Fr: 64 Regional 46-937-461064 465,000$      345,988$        -$                345,988$                    
Trans Fr: 78 Regional Res 46-937-461065 -$             525,000$        -$                525,000$                    

-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 465,000$      871,000$        -$                871,000$                    
871,000$                    

Approved Current
Department Line Item Code 26-Jan-04 Budget Amendment Revised

Professional Services 46-937-500400 -$             79,224$         -$                79,224$                      
Contingency 46-937-509900 60,000$        188,012$        (134,135)$        53,877$                      
Planning/Design 46-937-510100 405,000$      119,988$        -$                119,988$                    
Engineering 46-937-510301 -$             483,776$        134,135$         617,911$                    
  -$             -$               -$                -$                           
  -$             -$               -$                -$                           

-$             -$               -$                -$                           

Total 465,000$      871,000$        -$                871,000$                    
871,000$                    

Variance -$               

 Council Meeting 12/09/2013; Ord 13-70, CAF 13-126; BA #20 
(effective 7/1/2013)

Amendment to transfer $134,135 from Contingency to Engineering to help cover the costs of 
the contract with CH2MHill which was approved by the City Council on 9/27/2010.

City Council Meeting 6/27/2007; BA #1 Amendment to transfer $150,000 from the Regional Water FY 07-08 operating budget to the 
IBT Budget to continue plans and study of the project.

City Council Meeting 1/26/2004; BA #24 Amendment to establish a new project to obtain a new IBT (Interbasin Transfer) certificate as 
was required by the State.  Total project cost estimated to be $465,000. Revenue to come 
from Regional Reserve.

City Council Meeting 4/12/2004; BA #27 Amendment to decrease the Interbasin Transfer (Plan/Design) budget by $285,000 and 
contingencies by $60,000, for a total budget reduction of $345,000.  This was due to the 
Public Utilities Committee agreement on 3/22/2004 to allocate $120,000 for fiscal year 
2003/04 as a CIP Project for the work  related to obtaining an Interbasin Transfer Permit.  The 
reduction from revenue was obtained by reducing the appropriation from Regional Reserve.

City Council Meeting 4/10/2006; BA #30 Amendment to appropriate actual costs thus far for the IBT Project ($119,988).  The revenue 
was appropriated from Regional Water Reserves, however the actual money was never 
transferred from the Reserves.  This amendment was made for the purpose of "mak ing the 
transfer."  The project was to remain open until further review by the City Council.

EXPENDITURES

Reference: Notes:

Ordinance 13-70
46: CIP - Regional

937: KLRWS Inter-Basin Transfer Permit FY 13-14 Budget Amendment #20

Project Budget Created: 26 January 2004
Amending Capital Project 46-937: KLRWS Inter-Basin Transfer Permit

REVENUES

Amendment appropriates $150,000 to the CIP Regional IBT Project.  Appropriations will be 
placed in the contingency line item until further contracts are authorized by the City Council.

Amendment to transfer $125,000 from Contingency to Engineering to help cover the costs of 
the contract with CH2MHill which was approved by the City Council on 9/27/2010.

City Council Meeting 7/9/2012; Ord 12-47; BA #1 Amendment provides for the formal allocation of $38,000 provided in the FY 2013 budget to 
Fund 46.  The transfer line from Fund 64 to Fund 46 is shown as a memo reference only 
since it was approved in the budget adoption ordinance.  Since Fund 46 is a capital 
improvement project fund, it's budgetary appropriations are not considered in the routine 
annual budget adoption ordinance and are made separately and subsequent to the budget 
adoption.

City Council Meeting 11/10/2008; BA #14

City Council Meeting 6/22/2009; BA #1

Amendment to "true up" the IBT project budget with the engineering contract.  Funds were 
initially budgeted in the contingency line item.
The FY 09/10 Budget Ordinance appropriates $100,000 from Regional Water to the CIP 
Regional Water IBT Project.  This $100,000 will remain in contingency until such time as the 
Council approves additional contract or project costs for the project.

City Council Meeting 7/13/2009; BA #2

1/10/2010

City Council Meeting 6/23/2008; BA #1 Amendment to transfer $150,000 from the Regional Water FY 08-09 operating budget to the 
IBT Budget to continue plans and study of the project.

City Council Meeting 6/14/2010; BA #3 Amendment to transfer $125,000 from the Regional Water FY 10-11 operating budget to the 
IBT Budget.  This $125,000 will remain in contingency until further contracts are authorized 
by the City Council.

City Council Meeting 6/27/2013; Ord 13-19, BA #1 
(effective 7/1/2013)

This amendment appropriates $271,224 from contingency; $240,000 to Engineering due to a 
contract with CH2MHill for continued engineering services regarding the IBT Project and 
$31,224 to Professional Services to cover the legal fees to be incurred by Poyner & Spruill, 
LLC for this project.
Interfund transfer of $10,000 from Engineering to Planning/Design to cover overage in the 
Planning/Design line item.

Amendment provides for the formal allocation of $38,000 provided in the FY 2014 budget to 
Fund 46.  The transfer line from Fund 64 to Fund 46 is shown as a memo reference only 
since it was approved in the budget adoption ordinance.  Since Fund 46 is a capital 
improvement project fund, it's budgetary appropriations are not considered in the routine 
annual budget adoption ordinance and are made separately and subsequent to the budget 
adoption.

City Council Meeting 2/28/2011; Ord 11-17; BA #35

City Council Meeting 6/13/2011; Ord 11-39, BA #1

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 4 of 18 

 

The foregoing Ordinance 13-70, upon motion of Council Member ** and second by Council 
Member ***, and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following votes and 
was *** on this the 9 day of December 2013:  YES: ***.  NO:  **.   ABSTAIN:  **.   ABSENT:  
**.             
 

___________________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin, City Clerk 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 42 p. ***; CAF 13-126 
 
____________ 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
CITY OF HENDERSON 
 
I, Esther J. McCrackin, the duly appointed, qualified City Clerk of the City of Henderson, do 
hereby certify the attached is a true and exact copy of Ordinance 13—70 adopted by the 
Henderson, City Council in Regular Session on 9 December 2013 (Minute Book 42 p.**). This 
Ordinance is recorded in Ordinance Book 8, p. ***. 
 
Witness my hand and corporate seal of the City, this *** day of December 2013. 
 
_________________________ 
Esther J. McCrackin 
City Clerk 
City of Henderson, North Carolina 
 
 
 
 
   
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date:  _______________________ 
                         Katherine C. Brafford, Finance Director 
 
Reviewed by:  _______________________________ Date: _______________________ 
  A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 5 of 18 

 

R E S O L U T I O N   10—98 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION 
 OF A CONTRACT WITH CH2MHILL 

FOR THE INTER-BASIN TRANSFER OF WATER PROJECT 
FOR THE KERR LAKE REGIONAL WATER SYSTEM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council (Council) conducted its Annual Planning Retreat in January 2010, 
and during said Retreat identified eight Key Strategic Objectives (KSO) and Goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Resolution addresses one KSO as follows: KSO 5—Provide reliable, 

dependable infrastructure, Action Plan 5-2: Expand the Kerr Lake Regional Water 
Treatment Facility; and 

 
WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources (NCDENR) 

requires that the inter-basin transfer of water (IBT) from one river basin to another be 
approved and done under the certification process of the EMC; and 

 
WHEREAS, A Master Services Agreement was executed with the engineering firm of 

CH2MHill on 8 May 2008 for services relative to an IBT Petition; and 
 
WHEREAS, CH2MHill has completed Task Orders One and Two of the requirements for the 

certification process and have submitted the scope of work for the third task as outlined 
in Attachment A; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Kerr Lake Regional Water System Advisory Board was advised of the City’s 

intent to continue with the IBT Petition process and there was no expressed opposition; 
and   

 
WHEREAS, funding for the IBT Process is set up as a CIP Project and additional funding in the 

amount of $125,000 was approved in the FY 10 Budget. 
 
NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT 

DOES HEREBY APPROVE the execution of the contract with the engineering firm of 
CH2MHill in conjunction with the existing Master Services Contract for Task Order 
Three as more fully articulated in Attachment A to this Resolution, and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE HENDERSON CITY COUNCIL THAT IT DOES 

HEREBY AUTHORIZES the Mayor to execute said agreement on behalf of the City. 
 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 6 of 18 

 

The foregoing Resolution 10—98, upon motion of Council Member Inscoe and second by 
Council Member Rainey and having been submitted to a roll call vote and received the following 
votes and was APPROVED on this the 27th Day of September 2010:  YES: Peace-Jenkins, 
Daeke, Davis, Daye, Coffey, Inscoe, Rainey.  NO:  None.  ABSTAIN:  None.  ABSENT: Evans. 

 
 
 
_____________________________ 
James D. O’Geary, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Frank Frazier, Interim Deputy City Clerk 
 
Approved to Legal Form: 
 
________________________________ 
John H. Zollicoffer, Jr., City Attorney 
 
Reference:  Minute Book 41, p 662 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 7 of 18 

 

 
              

Resolution 10-98 
Attachment A 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 8 of 18 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 9 of 18 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 10 of 18 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 11 of 18 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 12 of 18 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 13 of 18 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 14 of 18 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 15 of 18 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 16 of 18 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 17 of 18 

 

 



CAF 13-126: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 18 of 18 

 

 



CM 13-32: 9 December 2013 Council Meeting 
Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________________ 

 

5 December 2013 
 
 

TO: The Honorable Mayor James D. O’Geary and Members of City Council 
 
FR: A. Ray Griffin, Jr., City Manager 
 
RE: CM:  13-32 
 
Subject: Off Premise Advertisement Sign Ordinance 
 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen 
 
At the last City Council Work Session held on 25 November 2013, there was discussion relative 
to an Off Premise Advertisement Ordinance.  This ordinance came as a recommendation from 
the Planning Board’s 18 November 2013 meeting. 

   
The City Staff continues to work with Attorney Zollicoffer to have this ordinance ready for your 
review at the next City Council meeting 13 January 2013.   

City Council Memo 
Office of City Manager 

P. O. Box 1434 
Henderson, NC  27536 

252.430.5701 

 
Agenda Item: _________ 
 
Council Meeting: 9 December 2013 
 



Meetings and Events Calendar 

 

Date Time Event Location 

Dec 10 3:00 PM 
Henderson Community  

Appearance Commission City Council Chambers 

Dec 12 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Park &  
Recreations Commission Aycock Recreation Center 

Dec 19 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Dec 23 Christmas 
Holiday 

City Council Meeting 
Cancelled Due to Holiday 

Merry Christmas 

Dec 24 
Christmas 

Holiday 
MERRY              CHRISTMAS CITY HALL CLOSED 

Dec 25 Christmas 
Holiday 

 
MERRY CHRISTMAS CITY HALL CLOSED  

Dec 26 
Christmas 

Holiday 
MERRY  CHRISTMAS

              CITY HALL CLOSED       

Jan 1st 
New Years 

Day 

 
         CITY HALL  CLOSED  

Jan 6th 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Jan 7th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of  

Adjustment City Council Chambers 

Jan 9th 12:00 PM 
Henderson-Vance Park &  
Recreations Commission Aycock Recreation Center 

Jan 13th 5:00 PM Library Advisory  Board Meeting Perry Memorial Library 

Jan 13th 6:00 PM City Council Regular Meeting City Council Chambers (If Approved) 

Jan 14th 3:00 PM 
Henderson Community  

Appearance Commission City Council Chambers 

Jan 16th 7:00 PM Human Relations Commission City Council Chambers 

Jan 20th MLK 
Birthday 

Martin Luther King 
Birthday  

CITY HALL CLOSED       

Jan 27th 6:00 PM City Council Meeting                
Work  Session to Follow 

City Council Chambers 

Jan 31st 10:00 AM Henderson-Vance E-911         
Advisory Board Meeting 

E-911 Operations Center 

Feb 3rd 3:30 PM Henderson Planning Board City Council Chambers 

Feb 4th 3:30 PM 
Henderson Zoning Board of  

Adjustment City Council Chambers 

Last Updated 12/6/2013 
































	#30 RM 9 Dec 2013
	#29 25 Nov Short
	#30 25 Nov Work session
	CAF 13-06  Award of High Service Replacement Contract R 13-04 O 13-71
	CAF 13-108 Authorizing contract with  McGill Assoc for Elmwood Sewer Project Design . R 13-68, O 13-50 BA#
	CAF 13-113 Handicapped Parking on Chestnut Street O 13-64
	CAF 13-98 CDBG Advisory Boards Implementation R 13-65
	CAF 13-122 Non profit demo contract R 13-80
	CAF 13-123 Council Committee appointments R 13-81
	CM 13-33 2 inch Water Main Replacement Project  Promissory Note
	CAF 13-126 Authorization of IBT Contingency Money Movement O 13-70
	Meetings and Event Calendar
	#10 Oct 21 Thru Nov 20 2013 Report
	#11 November 2013 HFD

